
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

      

 

Library Development Services Bureau  
900 N Street, Suite 400 
P.O. Box 942837 
Sacramento, California 94237-0001 
(916) 653-7532 phone 
(916) 653-8443 fax 
 

   C     a      l      i       f      o      r      n     i      a             S      t      a      t      e            L      i      b      r     a     r      y 

 

 
The California Library Services Board 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

April 17, 2018 
BOARD MEETING 

 
                   
 
 

Anne R. Bernardo, President 
Paymaneh Maghsoudi, Vice-President 
Greg Lucas, Chief Executive Officer 
Brandy Rose Buenafe 
Gary M. Christmas 
Aleita Huguenin 
Florante Peter Ibanez 
Adriana Martinez 
Peter Mindnich 
Elizabeth O. Murguia 
Sandra Tauler 
Connie Williams 



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
For further information contact: 

 
 

 
 
 

 
Annly Roman 

California State Library 
P.O. Box 942837 

Sacramento, CA 94237-0001 
(916) 323-0057 

annly.roman@library.ca.gov 
http://www.library.ca.gov/services/to-libraries/ca-library-services-act/  

 
Additional meeting call-in locations are as follows: 

 
Black Gold Library Cooperative 
580 Camino Mercado 
Arroyo Grande, CA 93420 

Redding Public Library – OPEN AT 10AM
1100 Parkview Ave., Fireside Room 
Redding, CA 96001 
 

Calaveras County Library 
1299 Gold Hunter Rd. 
San Andreas, CA 95249 
 

Riverside Public Library 
3581 Mission Inn Avenue 
Riverside, CA 92501 

Fresno Public Library 
2420 Mariposa 
Fresno, CA 93721 
 
 

San Diego County Library 
5560 Overland Avenue, Suite 110 
Conference Room B 
San Diego, CA 92123 

Fullerton Public Library 
353 W. Commonwealth Ave. 
Fullerton, CA 92832 
 

Southern California Library Cooperative 
248 E. Foothill Blvd., Suite 101 
Monrovia, CA 91016 

Pacific Library Partnership 
2471 Flores Street 
San Mateo, CA 94403 

 

 

MEETING NOTICE 
 

California Library Services Board 
April 17, 2018 

9:30am – 4:00pm 
 

California Library Services Act Regulatory Hearing 
Immediately following Board business meeting 

 
Stanley Mosk Library & Courts Building 

914 Capitol Mall, Room 500 
Sacramento, Ca 95814 



2 
 

 
 
 

 

A. BOARD OPENING 
 

1. Welcome and Introductions 
Welcome and introductions of Board members, staff, and audience 

2. Adoption of Agenda 
Consider agenda as presented or amended 

3. Approval of October 2017 Board Minutes – Document 1 
Consider minutes as presented or amended 

4. Board Resolution – Document 2 
Consider resolution for Dr. H. Eric Schockman 

5. Board meeting date for Fall 2018/Spring 2019 - Document 3 
Discuss dates for the upcoming Board meetings 

6. Nomination of Board Officers – Document 4 
a. Discuss the procedures for election of Board Officers 
b. Consider Nominating Committee for 2019 Board Officers 

 
B. REPORTS TO THE BOARD 

 

1. Board President’s Report 
Report on activities since last Board meeting 

2. Board Vice-President’s Report 
Report on activities since last Board meeting 

3. Chief Executive Officer’s Report 
Report on activities since last Board meeting 

4. Lighting Up Libraries: Broadband Update Report  
Update on technology improvement grants and broadband efforts 

5. Libraries Illuminated: Software and Hardware Improvement Program 
Grant Program Report 
Update on the status of the Software and Hardware Improvement program 
funded by a one-time grant  

6. Impact Study and Online Clearing House Grant Program Report 
Update on the status of the Impact Study and Online Clearing House program 
funded by a one-time grant  

7. California eBook Platform with Library Owned Content Program Report 
Update on the status of the California eBook Platform with Library Owned 
Content program funded by a one-time grant  

8. Cross Platform eBook Discovery App and Reader Program Report 
Update on the status of the Cross Platform eBook Discovery App and Reader 
program funded by a one-time grant  

9. Innovation Lab Grant Program Update 
Update on the status of the Innovation Lab program funded by a one-time grant  

10. Zip Books Grant Program Report 
Update on the status of the Zip Books program funded by a one-time grant 

 
C. CLSA PROGRAM ITEMS FOR INFORMATION/ACTION 

 

BUDGET AND PLANNING 
1. Approve final CLSA Budget for FY 2017/2018– Document 5 

Consider the final budget for fiscal year 2017/2018 
2. CLSA Proposed Budget for FY 2018/19 – Document 6 

Consider 2018/19 preliminary budget for CLSA. 



3 
 

 
 
 
RESOURCE SHARING 
1. CLSA System-level programs – Document 7 

Review and discuss System Annual Reports, FY 2016/17 
CLSA REPORTING 
Update on the status of potential changes to the CLSA reporting requirements and 
forms. 

 
D. CLSA REGULATIONS – Document 8 

Update on the status of the amendments to the CLSA regulations. Additional 
discussion will be held at the public hearing immediately following this Board 
meeting.  

 
E. LEGISLATIVE UPDATE  - Document 9 

 

Consider federal and state legislative issues   
 

F. BOARD DISCUSSION ITEMS 2018/19 
 

Strategic Planning Session 
Update on the Board’s Strategic Planning session held on April 16th, 2018 from 
1:00pm-4:00pm. A report on the Board’s discussion and potential action on 
recommended goals or objectives. 

 
G. PUBLIC COMMENT 

 

Public comment on any item or issue that is under the purview of the California 
Library Services Board and is not on the agenda 

 
H. COMMENTS FROM BOARD MEMBERS/OFFICERS 

 

Board member or officer comment on any item or issues that is under the purview 
of the California Library Services Board and is not on the agenda 

 
I. OLD BUSINESS 

Any old business the Board members wish to discuss 
 

J. AGENDA BUILDING 
Input on agenda items for subsequent Board meetings 

 

 
K. ADJOURNMENT 

 

 Adjourn the meeting 



California Library Services Board Meeting 1 

October 17, 2017 2 
3 

California State Capitol  4 

Room 2040 5 

Sacramento, CA 6 

7 
Welcome and Introductions 8 

President Bernardo called the California Library Services Board meeting to order on 9 

October 17, 2017 at 9:30 a.m.  10 

     Board Members Present: Anne Bernardo, Brandy Buenafe, Gary Christmas, Aleita 11 

Huguenin, Florante Ibanez, Paymaneh Maghsoudi, Peter Mindnich, Elizabeth Murguia, 12 

Eric Schockman, Sandra Tauler, and Connie Williams.  13 

     California State Library Staff Present: State Librarian Greg Lucas, Deputy State 14 

Librarian Narinder Sufi, Natalie Cole, Janet Coles, Wendy Hopkins, Lena Pham, Monica 15 

Rivas, Annly Roman, and Mark Webster. 16 

Adoption of Agenda 17 

It was moved, seconded (Maghsoudi/Ibanez) and carried 18 
unanimously that the California Library Services Board adopts the 19 
agenda of the October 17, 2017 meeting. 20 

21 
Approval of April 2017 Board Minutes  22 

It was moved, seconded (Maghsoudi/Ibanez) and carried 23 
unanimously that the California Library Services Board approves the 24 
draft minutes of the April 25, 2017 meeting. 25 

Board Resolutions 26 

It was moved, seconded (Schockman/Ibanez) and carried 27 
unanimously that the California Library Services Board adopts 28 
California Library Services Board Resolution 2017-02 for Penny 29 
Kastanis (Attached as Exhibit A). 30 

It was moved, seconded (Ibanez/Tauler) and carried unanimously 31 
that the California Library Services Board adopts California Library 32 
Services Board Resolution 2017-03 for Gregory McGinity (Attached 33 
as Exhibit B). 34 

Document 1



2 

It was moved, seconded (Murguia/Maghsoudi) and carried 1 
unanimously that the California Library Services Board adopts 2 
California Library Services Board Resolution 2017-04 for Dr. Kevin 3 
Starr (Attached as Exhibit C). 4 

Election of Board Officers  5 

Member Williams reported that the Nominating Committee asked which Board 6 

members would be interested in running for President and Vice-President. Anne 7 

Bernardo and Paymaneh Maghsoudi agreed to run. An email Board election ballot was 8 

sent to all Board members. Based on those ballots the Nominating Committee put 9 

forward Anne Bernardo for President and Paymaneh Maghsoudi for Vice President.  10 

President Bernardo called for nominations from the floor. There were none. 11 

It was moved, seconded (Williams/Ibanez) and carried unanimously 12 
that the California Library Services Board elects Anne Bernardo as 13 
President of the California Library Services Board for the year 2018. 14 

15 
It was moved, seconded (Williams/Ibanez) and carried unanimously 16 
that the California Library Services Board elects Paymaneh 17 
Maghsoudi as Vice-President of the California Library Services 18 
Board for the year 2018. 19 

20 
Board Meeting Date for Spring 2018 21 

 Annly Roman reported that the Board had already discussed meeting in April, in 22 

person, in Sacramento. Member Ibanez requested to include the Joint Conference of 23 

Librarians of Color in Albuquerque, New Mexico, September 26-30 to the 2018 events 24 

calendar. Member Williams requested adding the California School Libraries 25 

Association Conference on February 1-4 at the Tenaya Lodge in Yosemite.  26 

Roman asked when the Board would like to hold their fall meeting and would they 27 

prefer a conference call or meeting in-person. Member Schockman said that he would 28 

prefer an in-person meeting at the end of September or early October. Member Buenafe 29 

said she preferred that time-period but suggested a teleconference.  All other members 30 

indicated they preferred an in-person meeting.  31 

REPORTS TO THE BOARD 32 

Board President’s Report 33 

President Bernardo reported that she ended her terms as a member of the 34 

Legislative Committee for the Council of California County Law Librarians and as the 35 



3 

County Law Libraries’ liaison on the Executive Committee of the Law Practice 1 

Management and Technology section of the State Bar of California.  2 

She was working on developing a “Lawyers in the Library” program at her library and 3 

expanding that program throughout other colleague libraries in the county. 4 

Board Vice-President’s Report  5 

Vice-President Maghsoudi said that she had been working on a ballot measure for 6 

the construction and remodel of their central library.  7 

Chief Executive Officer’s Report 8 

State Librarian Lucas reported that the State Library had added a new Deputy State 9 

Librarian, Narinder Sufi. 10 

The state budget, approved in June, provided $3 million in one-time funding for 11 

career online high school, which allowed people to get a high school diploma online. 12 

The program was administered by libraries and 44 or 45 library jurisdictions already 13 

participated. The intent was to spend the funds over a three year period on about 2500 14 

seats.  15 

In California there had been an 88% completion rate. Part of that high success rate 16 

was an up-front assessment to determine if prospective participants had the dedication, 17 

work ethic, etc. to complete the program since if a participant does not complete the 18 

program that scholarship could not be reused. $50,000 would go to the company that 19 

created the program to conduct intake and assessment. 20 

Under the existing program, each library that received a scholarship had to provide 21 

funding for an additional scholarship, so the program had the potential to help 5000 22 

people.  23 

State Librarian Lucas reported that the State Library also received $3 million in one-24 

time funding, to be spent over three years, for the California Civil Liberties Education 25 

Program. The original program was centered on Japanese internment. New language 26 

was added to the program statute that allowed consideration of projects that could also 27 

address other violations of civil liberties. Lucas reported that staff would probably 28 

request program ideas in mid-November.   29 



4 

Member Schockman asked if the State Library could take some of the Civil Liberties 1 

Education Program money and examine the roll of sanctuary cities in California as a 2 

civil liberties issue. State Librarian Lucas stated that the past program had allowed 3 

potential grantees to present ideas and State Library staff assessed the proposals to 4 

see which fit within the law. Lucas stated that there had been some conversations; 5 

particularly by the Assemblyman who carried the bill, about channeling larger chunks of 6 

the funding into bigger projects. For example, in 2017 the State Library had allocated 7 

half of the one-time grant money for projects that had budgets of $100,000 or higher. 8 

One of them was a KCET media campaign to talk about all sorts of civil liberties 9 

violations.  Lucas stated he someone could put in a similar grant proposal dealing with 10 

the sanctuary city issue.  11 

State Librarian Lucas stated that $3 million in on-going public education funding to 12 

provide online resources (databases) to the state’s public school kids has also been 13 

included. California was the only state in the Country not to offer some sort of a state 14 

sponsored suite of online content for local districts. The State Library was unsure if $3 15 

million was enough for a state the size of California.  16 

Lucas reported that he had involved Member Williams in the process and had done 17 

some research for them into other states’ processes. He hoped there would be no 18 

objections to Member Williams represent the Board on the working group that would be 19 

created to make decisions on how the $3 million was spent due to her expertise in 20 

education. The library had been working with the education community to put together 21 

an RFP. One of the stipulations Lucas wanted included in the RFP was the databases 22 

be available to public libraries so kids doing their homework at the library could access 23 

the same databases after school. 24 

The State Library received funds to upgrade its digital asset management system. 25 

Through that upgrade the library added the Rosetta digital preservation repository. State 26 

Librarian Lucas reported that it would take about a year to get that up and running.  27 

Member Schockman stated that, since CLSA budgets originated from the 28 

Governor’s office and the Department of Finance, he was interested in the Board 29 

interviewing the candidates for Governor. He felt they needed to look ahead as a 30 



5 

community and assess who would continue helping fulfill the mandate for libraries in 1 

California.  2 

Member Buenafe said that John Chiang would be the keynote speaker at the 3 

California Library Association conference in May so librarians would be able to get a 4 

feel for his position. Member Schockman said that while the Board was not political they 5 

each had their circles of influence and he wondered how they could go about vetting the 6 

best choice going forward. He felt the next Governor had a big role to play in libraries 7 

and he hoped the Board would continue to monitor that race  8 

Lighting up Libraries: Broadband Update report  9 

Natalie Cole reported that the project goal was to bring high-speed broadband to all 10 

California public libraries by connecting them to the California Research and Education 11 

Network (CalREN), a statewide, high-speed, high-bandwidth network, managed by the 12 

Corporation for Education Network Initiative in California (CENIC). 13 

Cole reported that the project was going very well. 139 of California’s 184 14 

jurisdictions were connected or in the process of connecting and 110 of those were fully 15 

connected, including 100% of all the libraries that joined in year one and 33 of the 16 

libraries that joined in year two. 633 of California’s 1125 public library outlets (main and 17 

branch libraries) are connected or in the process of connecting and 427 are fully 18 

connected. 19 

Cole reported that the broadband connections were having a positive impact in 20 

California’s public libraries. The 34 directors of libraries that had been connected for 21 

twelve months were surveyed and 32 had responded. The result showed that the 22 

libraries were seeing: better patron support; better economic development in the 23 

community; libraries were introducing new services and programs (this moved slower 24 

because programs took time to get off the ground); better support for individual online 25 

learning;  some reported increased usage of the library’s computers but the lower 26 

instance was partially due to the increase in people brining personal devices because of 27 

improved Wi-Fi; increased administrative efficiencies; and fewer complaints about 28 

Internet speed.  29 

In year three Technology Improvement Grants were provided to 28 libraries, 12 30 

connecting to CalREN for the first time and 16 adding branches. Nine library 31 



6 

jurisdictions are interested in joining the project in year four and 13 wanted to add more 1 

branches. Those numbers were in review and would be confirmed at the start of 2018.  2 

Natalie Cole reported that program staff was continuing to explore strategies for 3 

helping libraries with significant inhibitors to participation including financial hardship, 4 

and topography or geography issues. Overall 38% of California’s library outlets were 5 

connected, but only 22% of rural outlets are connected compared with 50% of city 6 

outlets, 34% of suburban outlets, and 34% of town outlets. 7 

Cole reported project funds were being used to help libraries with the cost of 8 

connectivity and allowing libraries to use funds that way was one of the strategies. The 9 

State Library was also looking at partnerships that could enable public libraries to work 10 

with academic and other anchor institutions to bring broadband to rural locations. 11 

Additionally the project team was exploring other funding opportunities. 12 

Member Williams asked if libraries were working with schools. Natalie Cole replied 13 

that was the conversation was round ways schools, health institutions, and agencies 14 

could all work together to make it worthwhile for a service provider to make the 15 

connection. Cole said she felt that partnerships and additional funding were the two 16 

things that would make those connections happen. Member Williams offered help with 17 

schools if needed.  18 

Member Murguia thought at the last meeting Cole had mentioned a loan program for 19 

jurisdictions that were not able to front the cost of connecting while waiting for their e-20 

rate reimbursement. Natalie Cole said the grant program had been expanded to allow 21 

libraries to use the grant funds to offset some of those costs, which they could not do 22 

originally. The State Library also wanted to continue conversations about other loan 23 

opportunities because there was a period of time where costs were very high and some 24 

libraries needed a way to pay those fees before their discounts come in and they got 25 

that money back.  26 

Member Schockman said that he thought Cole’s information was interesting but 27 

reported outputs rather than outcomes. He asked if we would get to a point where we 28 

were judging outcomes on connectivity investment because that would be useful in 29 

advertising and annual reports. Natalie Cole said that she agreed outcome tracking was 30 

needed but it would take more money because measuring outcomes was significantly 31 



7 

more work. She thought it was something that could be done as libraries were 1 

connected for longer periods of time since only 34 libraries had been connected for 12 2 

months. Cole also thought that some positive outcomes would be around programing 3 

and increased services which took more time to implement.  4 

Member Williams stated that the State Library had just received funding for 5 

programs, like databases and Career Online High School, which were all done online 6 

and she thought the state library should find a way to market the new broadband 7 

connections with those as examples of what could be done with it. Natalie Cole stated 8 

broadband could impact many of the State Library’s’ projects.  9 

California eBook Platform with Library Owned Content Program Report 10 

Lena Pham reported that, prior to the grant; nearly half of California’s public libraries 11 

were connected to the enki platform. The project was rolled-out in May and all 12 

unconnected libraries were contacted to inform them of the opportunity to connect to 13 

enki for free for one year, with an ongoing maintenance fee after. 28 libraries had 14 

applied to be connected and 19 had gone live. As of the October 2017 meeting there 15 

were 104 libraries connected to enki and 113 libraries would be connected this year. 16 

Pham reported that an outreach plan had been created to reach the 68 non-17 

participating libraries and with the goal of having 75% of all eligible California public 18 

libraries signed up to connect by the end of June 2018.  19 

The Board allocated $200,000 for collection development and Pacific Library 20 

Partnership has disbursed half that to purchase eBooks for the enki collection. Califa 21 

has purchased five new collections; the McGraw Business Collection 2016 Update, the 22 

McGraw Computing Collection 2016 Update, the McGraw Student Study Aids 2016 23 

Update, select eBooks from Independent Publishers Group, and Bibliolabs, which was a 24 

part of Library Journal’s Self-E Select Collection. In the coming months Califa planned 25 

to add 6 new always available collections with focuses on adult fiction, 2 children’s 26 

collections, a travel collection, and technology reference books 27 

Lena Pham informed the Board that the state library could provide them with a 28 

spreadsheet from Califa showing what was purchased including specific titles, licensing 29 

and the prices.  30 



8 

Member Williams asked if every library system that signed up for enki was in the 1 

same library and had access to the same books. Pham replied that was the case.  2 

Cross Platform eBook Discovery App and Reader Program Report  3 

Lena Pham reported that the Board had allocated $200,000 to the SimplyE grant. 4 

The pilot library for the program, Alameda County Library had gone live on SimplyE. 5 

Califa worked with Datalogics to get Alameda set-up on the SimplyE app.  6 

 Pham reported that she had a test login to see how the platform looked, and had 7 

downloaded an eBook from SimplyE with no issues. The Alameda app was still being 8 

fine-tuned to improve access and it should go live to library patrons soon.   9 

Lena Pham reported that the grant could fund six pilot libraries. The five other pilot 10 

libraries that had been chosen for the grant were Santa Clara County Library, Los 11 

Angeles Public Library, Butte County Library, Porterville Public Library, and the Black 12 

Gold Cooperative Library System. There were 45 applicants for this project. The 13 

selected pilot libraries represented a variety of library sizes, service populations, eBook 14 

vendor subscriptions, and Integrated Library Systems. The libraries that were not 15 

chosen could subscribe independently through Califa for $3000, a flat subscription rate 16 

for set-up.  17 

Member Williams clarified the program would aggregate all of the library’s eBook 18 

platforms so if she was searching for a book using the SimplyE app it would cross 19 

search and provide the book regardless of the purchasing platform. Pham confirmed 20 

that was the case. Williams asked if there would be a user satisfaction/usability 21 

assessment. Pham said that part of the plan was to look at user satisfaction, circulation 22 

statistics, etc. She believed that Carol Frost at Pacific Library Partnership was already in 23 

early discussions about what information could be analyzed to assess if the app was 24 

meeting users’ needs and how it could be improved. Williams asked if SimplyE was the 25 

only app of its kind on the market. Carol Frost stated that as far as they knew it was the 26 

only one.  27 

Member Schockman asked how academic libraries would get access to this product. 28 

Carol Frost replied that the product was set-up to deal with eBook collections that were 29 

owned by a public library. If someone had a public library card to a library using SimplyE 30 



9 

they would have access. Other agencies, including universities, were not precluded 1 

from going into partnership with New York Public Library to buy SimplyE.  2 

Lena Pham reported that another component of the grant was connecting the enki 3 

library to SimplyE, which had been completed.  4 

Innovation Lab Grant Program Update 5 

Wendy Hopkins stated that the project goal was to engage libraries and partners, 6 

providing resources, and enhance the library experience which would bring more, 7 

diverse patrons and make libraries more sustainable. CEPA compliance, a stumbling 8 

block for some libraries, was not required for participating libraries because they were 9 

not linking directly to the internet.  10 

Wendy Hopkins reported that a webpage was in the process of being created for the 11 

project. A rough draft of FAQs had been created in order to minimize confusion because 12 

each library would have an individual project.  13 

One of the interesting things about the projects was the physical furniture needs that 14 

the libraries expressed for potential projects. For example, one library wanted to know if 15 

they could build a wall around the station to limit noise. That became a construction 16 

issue and since LSTA funds cannot be used for construction the project team has 17 

carried over that requirement for the CLSA funds to limit confusion.  18 

All technology purchases would go toward supplies and materials for the stations 19 

and not for the evaluation of programing. If libraries proposed purchasing subscriptions 20 

they had to prove the value to program users and show the subscription could be 21 

maintained once the grant had expired.  The intent was for each station to support at 22 

least two community programs.  23 

President Bernardo asked if the project had been launched. Wendy Hopkins 24 

responded that it had just launched which was why there was not much to report. 25 

Member Williams asked if the funded projects were designed to be replicable 26 

elsewhere. Hopkins stated that innovation stations tended to be moving pieces or parts, 27 

each library’s would be different but libraries would be willing and able to share what 28 

went into the project with other libraries.  29 

Member Murguia asked for an example of a station. Diane Satchwell stated that the 30 

Chula Vista public library, who worked with Qualcomm and the school district, was a 31 



10 

perfect example. The school district allocated a teacher to be at the library after hours 1 

and on weekends and students come every day. Microsoft had also come to do coding 2 

with the kids. They had made robotic projects and worked with iPads. The kids wrote 3 

messages when they leave and those had been recorded on the Chula Vista Public 4 

Library’s website video for Innovation Station. That had been a great marketing tool and 5 

was where current potential grant candidates were being referred to see an example. 6 

Diane reported other schools had also expressed and interest in partnering with their 7 

public libraries on similar programs. Member Williams encouraged reaching out to local 8 

school librarians.  9 

Libraries Illuminated: Software and Hardware Improvement Program Grant 10 

Program Report 11 

Natalie Cole reported that the project goal was to help libraries, particularly those in 12 

underserved communities, make software and hardware improvements to maximize 13 

benefits to patrons as they accessed new high-speed Internet connections. 14 

Coles stated that the project team could already see that project funds would have 15 

an impact on communities across the state, fostering partnerships and supporting a 16 

variety of technology acquisition and programming in underserved communities. The 17 

Committee was scheduled to meet on October 18th to make decisions about which 18 

proposals would be funded.  19 

45 applications for funds had been received from libraries in urban, rural, and 20 

suburban communities. The applications demonstrated a need for upgraded and new 21 

technologies in public libraries and a desire among library staff to provide innovative 22 

programing. Most applications were for projects that would serve underserved 23 

communities and from libraries that are connected or in the process of connecting to 24 

CalREN. Applicants and their partners proposed contributing almost 200% in matching 25 

funds to the grant funds they were requesting. 26 

Natalie Cole reported that several libraries drew on their participation in other State 27 

Library projects in their applications. Some libraries used information they gathered 28 

during Community Conversations; one library connected its proposal to programing 29 

related to PLP’s Student Success Initiative which brought libraries, schools, and school 30 



11 

districts together to share data and give students more access to public libraries; and 1 

others wanted to leverage projects developed through the new Virtual Reality program. 2 

In terms of items the libraries wanted to purchase there was a lot of variety including 3 

software, hardware, audio-visual equipment, robotics, and coding. The project team 4 

also saw a variety of programs like makerspaces, fab labs, media labs, literacy 5 

programing (early, adult, computer, financial), and staff training. One library proposed a 6 

whole suite of mobile learning stations focusing on immersive learning experiences. 7 

Another wanted to have teens create a virtual reality experience of their city in the early 8 

twentieth century. Libraries also proposed a variety of partners; academic institutions, 9 

senior centers, job centers, workforce development agencies, and city and county 10 

departments.  11 

Impact Study and Online Clearing House Grant Program Report  12 

Natalie Cole reported that the project goal was to create an impact study and online 13 

clearinghouse cataloging the economic and social value of libraries. Since that meeting 14 

the set of 65 resources demonstrating libraries’ financial value and return on investment 15 

had been made available on the State Library’s website. The researchers and students 16 

working on the project had identified 50 new resources that focused on libraries’ social 17 

impacts. Those resources had just been received and had not yet been reviewed but 18 

would be going online shortly to compliment the already posted resources.  19 

The project team had connected with colleagues in the United Kingdom who were 20 

conducting research into how libraries could create and connect social and financial 21 

value. The British project was led by a non-profit agency called Libraries Unlimited and 22 

the University of Exeter, and was funded by Arts Council England. Data and research 23 

plans had been shared and we were invited to attend, via livestream, an action research 24 

summit that brought together academics and senior practitioners to discuss how 25 

libraries, social enterprises, and cultural institutions could understand, grow, and 26 

communicate the diverse value they created within communities.  27 

The next steps were to annotate and make available resources on libraries’ social 28 

impact and look at information coming out of the Museum field. Cole reported that the 29 

project team was continuing to identify areas of collaboration with colleagues in the 30 

United Kingdom. They were also going be to developing a definition of value in relation 31 



12 

to public libraries and creating a study to test the definition and demonstrate libraries’ 1 

impact. 2 

President Bernardo asked if the project had any crossover with ALA or ILS 3 

databases. Cole reported that some of the resources were on ALA but the researchers 4 

had chosen the most California specific resources.  5 

Member Williams wanted to know the next step once the project was completed and 6 

wondered if those steps were part of this project. Cole replied that next steps were not 7 

part of this grant; this was the gathering of the information. She agreed that the data 8 

needed to be used to raise awareness. At the UK summit they had highlighted some 9 

work by a professor who looked at closing the gap between identity (how we see 10 

ourselves) and reputation (how people see us). For example, libraries see ourselves as 11 

community builders but others see us as book peddlers.   12 

President Bernardo stated that she thought part of the intention behind the program 13 

was to have a pool of information to tap into to send out when we had those high level 14 

questions. Member Williams said that she felt it was incumbent upon the Board to have 15 

that discussion on what to do with the information.  16 

Member Buenafe shared that the National Institute of Corrections did a similar 17 

project with correctional libraries. She had been in Colorado this past summer where 18 

they talked about their value especially in the realm of recidivism reduction. The clearing 19 

house being developed for corrections was being used to speak specifically to people 20 

outside the correctional library world to increase funding for correctional libraries. 21 

Buenafe suggested connecting with the National Institute of Corrections to get that 22 

perspective and suggestions. Correctional libraries were constantly defending their 23 

existence and she thought the data being collected through the grant could be similarly 24 

used in the public realm.   25 

Zip Books Grant Program Report 26 

Janet Coles reported that that Zip Books was an alternate model to the traditional 27 

interlibrary loan and ground to ground delivery and had been successfully used in 30 28 

rural libraries in California since 2013 through a Library Services and Technology Act 29 

funded statewide project. Last December the State Library, with the approval of the 30 



13 

California Library Services Board awarded a $1 million Zip Book expansion project grant 1 

to the NorthNet Cooperative Library System. 2 

NorthNet contracted with the Califa group to provide administrative and support 3 

services for the project. Those two organizations had been working together to 4 

administrate the project and meet the objectives that were laid out in the grant proposal.  5 

Coles reported that the objectives that were to be accomplished for the project to 6 

date included the creation and convening of an advisory committee, development of a 7 

new funding formula for libraries, developing of a new purchasing method, and the 8 

addition of 14 rural libraries to the project. She was pleased to report that, to-date; the 9 

benchmarks had largely been accomplished. 13 new libraries had been added to the 10 

project, had undergone training and begun to implement Zip Books services. Those 11 

libraries were largely drawn from the central valley and the central coast. 21 additional 12 

libraries were in the process of being recruited to the project, and it was expected that 13 

those libraries would be trained and up-and-running early in 2018. 14 

Janet Coles reported that a new set of marketing materials (posters, bookmarks, and 15 

book plates) had been developed.  An in-service would also be held at the CLA annual 16 

conference, bringing together new libraries and legacy libraries to network, share 17 

practices, and start sustainability planning.  18 

Coles said that she and Jacquie Brinkley, NorthNet Cooperative Library System, had 19 

gone to Portland in August to present at the Northwestern Interlibrary Loan Conference. 20 

The session was well attended and had lots of responses from that group afterwards.   21 

Member Huguenin asked if there would be outreach to other geographic areas since 22 

there seemed to be a lack of participation in the Los Angeles area. Coles said there 23 

would be. The clustering in the central valley was because the project had largely 24 

focused on rural libraries up until that point. For the 21 new libraries, they were going to 25 

be looking at widening the project to other types of libraries. They were looking at 26 

targeting areas that were not geographically represented.   27 

CLSA PROGRAM ITEMS FOR INFORMATION/ACTION 28 

RESOURCE SHARING 29 

Consolidation and Affiliations  30 



14 

Annly Roman reported that the City of Goleta had requested to consolidate with the 1 

Black Gold Library Cooperative System (Black Gold). Goleta was part of the Santa 2 

Barbara City Library jurisdiction but the city of Goleta owned the library building. Goleta 3 

had decided to split off and form an independent library district. The city was a member 4 

of Black Gold under the Santa Barbara City Library District but would need to be 5 

approved for their own membership when they became their own library jurisdiction. 6 

The request was to become an independent member of Black Gold as of July 1, 2018.  7 

It was moved, seconded (Ibanez/Christmas) and carried unanimously 8 
that the California Library Services Board approves the affiliation of 9 
the Goleta Library with the Black Gold Cooperative Library System 10 
effective July 1, 2018, and waives the September 1, 2017 filing date 11 
for 2018/19 affiliations. 12 

13 

BUDGET AND PLANNING 14 

System Plans of service and Budgets 15 

Annly Roman announced that the Board could discuss the final 2017/2018 budget 16 

but could not take action because it had been accidentally removed from the agenda 17 

and was not properly noticed. Roman said that lack of action would not impact the 18 

funding going to the Systems since the Board had already approved the proposed 19 

budget, which had not changed, so the Board could address it at the next Board 20 

meeting. If the Board felt it was necessary they could also hold a regularly scheduled 21 

teleconference meeting in about a month to address the budget.   22 

Monica Rivas reported that the System Population and Membership Figures and the 23 

System Plans of Service were both still up for consideration. Rivas reported that the 24 

administrative regulations provided for an annual review and approval of the system 25 

population and membership figures for use in the allocation formula to distribute state 26 

funds. It stated that “CLSA funds distributed based on population shall be awarded 27 

based on the most recent available combined estimates for cities and counties from the 28 

State Department of Finance.” Those numbers were usually posted by June 1st by the 29 

State Librarian.  30 

It was moved, seconded (Ibanez/Maghsoudi) and carried 31 
unanimously that the California Library Services Board approves the 32 



15 

System Population and Membership figures for use in the allocation 1 
of System funds for the fiscal year 2017/18.  2 

Monica Rivas reported that the System’s Plans of Service were the goals that the 3 

Systems provided to the State Library on how they planned to use their Communication 4 

and Delivery money. The systems were using funds for physical delivery (mostly 5 

contracted delivery), resource sharing, eBook programs like Zinio or Overdrive, some 6 

were using enki, and some funded Link+. There were also a few libraries using funds for 7 

broadband connectivity. 8 

Member Williams asked for a quick overview of Link+. Diane Satchwell stated that 9 

Innovative was a company that provided a link a catalogue that 70 libraries in Nevada, 10 

Arizona, and California share. If someone was looking for an item their library does not 11 

have, they can get it from one of the other libraries in 3-5 days and it is free to the 12 

public.  13 

It was moved, seconded (Maghsoudi/Schockman) and carried 14 
unanimously that the California Library Services Board approves the 15 
CLSA System Plans of Service for the nine Cooperative Library 16 
Systems, submitted for the fiscal year 2017/18.  17 

President Bernardo asked if there was any interest in discussing the final budget or 18 

opinion on how the Board wanted to proceed with that item. There were no comments 19 

so Bernardo asked for a recommendation from staff. Annly Roman commented that the 20 

April 2018 meeting would still be within the 2017/2018 fiscal year so the Board could 21 

address the budget in April and still be within the current fiscal year. The Board agreed 22 

to proceed with that item at the April meeting. 23 

System Reports 24 

State Librarian Lucas stated that this item was something he had requested be 25 

placed on the agenda. He wanted the Board to consider uniform disclosure for the nine 26 

cooperative library systems. The state library received financial statements from the 27 

systems with varying degrees of specificity.  28 

Lucas stated that if you were to search the State Controller’s website some of the 29 

previous systems that consolidated to form the new systems had varying levels of 30 



16 

PERS payment responsibility. It was unclear, at least from the statements that we had, 1 

who was responsible for those liabilities, the existing system or the original system.  2 

If federal funds for libraries disappeared and the state of California decided to 3 

commit to higher levels of local assistance for public libraries, decisions would be made 4 

based on the administration’s understanding of the services the systems were currently 5 

delivering. If the administration was not satisfied, the decision could be to try something 6 

new. Lucas said the goal of the State Library was to find a statement that everyone 7 

could agree on showing the assets, liabilities, and salaries.  8 

State Librarian Lucas stated that the State Library had been in conversations with 9 

the State Auditor General to determine what information was required when they 10 

audited someone who received state funds. The State Library was going to start asking 11 

for those things.  12 

President Bernardo stated that she had thought that all the systems had regular 13 

audits and asked if those audits were held to the State Auditor’s standards. Lucas 14 

replied that the system audits were held to a standard but the state library wanted to 15 

make sure they had all information the State Auditor might request. Lucas thought that 16 

since the State Library oversees the systems for the Board, having a complete picture 17 

of the financial condition of the existing and legacy systems that had merged into 18 

existing systems would be important in future decisions about investment.  19 

Carol Frost commented that each system was quite complex and has multiple 20 

sources of funding beyond the money received from CLSA funds. An auditor would be 21 

responsible for looking at the overall fiscal healthiness of the system. She thought that 22 

the systems completely agreed with the State Library that there should be consistent 23 

reporting. There were sometimes differing interpretations for completing the forms so 24 

the Systems thought having a uniform way to express everything would be helpful. Frost 25 

stated that a lot of variables went into the system budgets so they looked forward to 26 

working with the State Library on trying to quantify what needed to be expressed in the 27 

budgets and narrative forms.  28 

Diane Satchwell commented that the systems could, when they submitted their 29 

CLSA reports, attach their audits to try to give the State Library more information.  30 



17 

President Bernardo asked if State Librarian Lucas was thinking of developing a 1 

template to effectively demonstrate where the money was going. Lucas confirmed that 2 

was the goal. Member Christmas stated that he felt determinations on how to report the 3 

information should come back to the Board.  4 

CLSA REGULATIONS  5 

Annly Roman reported that at the April 2017 meeting the Board had approved the 6 

updated regulatory language. Since then, state library staff had compiled the necessary 7 

paperwork and drafted a notice in preparation for filing with the Office of Administrative 8 

Law.  The form 399, the Economic and Fiscal Impact report, had just been signed by 9 

the Department of Finance and should be received in her office soon. Roman estimated 10 

the State Library should be able to file the notice packet with the Office of Administrative 11 

Law to begin the regulatory process. 12 

Roman said that the Board had previously discussed wanting to hold an open public 13 

hearing to discuss the regulations. The April meeting would be a possibility if the Board 14 

wanted to incorporate the hearing into that meeting. The Board agreed that would be 15 

the most cost effective way of doing it.  16 

President Bernardo asked if they were looking to make any changes at the current 17 

meeting. Roman said that if there were additional changes the Board felt were needed, 18 

changes could be made.  Bernardo said that in section 20107, the last sentence of “a”, 19 

“The definitions incorporated by reference are accurate to California Statutes 2016”, 20 

was not necessary. Also in 20107(b) number 2, the definition of a CEO is also present 21 

in Education Code 18726 and in CCR 20116 so she did not feel that it needed to be 22 

repeated again. There was consensus among the Board that those two items could be 23 

removed.  24 

Annly Roman stated that the State Library would need to notify the Department of 25 

Finance of the changes but she did not think it would make a difference in the Economic 26 

Impact certification.  27 

It was moved, seconded (Ibanez/Maghsoudi) and carried 28 
unanimously that the California Library Services Board approves the 29 
California Library Services Act regulatory language as amended to 30 
remove the last sentence in code section 20107(a); “The definitions 31 
incorporated by reference are accurate to California Statutes 2016.” 32 



18 

And code section 20107(b)(2), the definition of the “Chief Executive 1 
Officer”.  2 

State Librarian Lucas stated that at the Board’s April 2017 meeting some Board 3 

members requested that the word “contiguous” be struck from the regulations. Board 4 

members favoring removal of the word “contiguous” argued that in an age of digital 5 

connections and alternate methods of resource-sharing, physical proximity need not be 6 

a necessity for partnership. 7 

 Several public libraries and the cooperative library systems expressed concerns; 8 

both in writing and at the April 2017 meeting, that removal of the word “contiguous” 9 

could have detrimental effects on smaller or rural libraries as well as the cohesiveness 10 

they feel is essential to their library systems. Several hypothetical possibilities were 11 

raised which some cooperative library systems felt could adversely affect the equitable 12 

distribution of California Library Services Act funding should the word “contiguous” be 13 

removed. The Board postponed action on this issue pending more information. State 14 

Library staff looked at the specific questions submitted by the Systems and tried to 15 

assess them.  16 

Lucas stated that the State Library’s recommendation was to remove the word 17 

“contiguous” because, based on library staff’s research; the word did not have much 18 

effect one way or another. Additionally, the Board had, in the past, waived that 19 

requirement. Based on actions that the Board had taken, going back decades, none of 20 

the hypothetical adverse effects brought up in the systems’ letters could happen without 21 

Board approval. 22 

State Library Lucas said that is seemed unlikely to state library staff based on what 23 

was in the law and the 40 years of precedent set by the Board that current Board or 24 

future Board members would keep the current funding structure but allow a populous 25 

area like San Francisco to merge with Los Angeles and create a giant system that 26 

would suck all the money away and disadvantage everyone else in the state of 27 

California. So either the method of allocating funds would be changed or the merger 28 

would not be approved.  29 

State Librarian Lucas also pointed out that word “contiguous” did not exist in the 30 

statute, maybe because it was somehow implicit. Annly Roman stated that 31 



19 

contiguousness was kind of implicit under the definition of that constituted a cooperative 1 

library system. The definition stated that the systems needed to be regional and that the 2 

systems were the cooperative library systems in existence under the Public Library 3 

Services Act of 1963 when the California Library Services Act was enacted in 1977. 4 

Roman stated that the Board had been provided with a list of those original systems, 5 

whose borders were very similarly to the current systems; with the exception of systems 6 

that had merged into larger systems.  7 

Member Schockman asked where the fear was coming from and whether there was 8 

a threat that the Board was not sensing surrounding a word like “contiguous”.  State 9 

Librarian Lucas said if Member Schockman was asking if the state library had some 10 

knowledge of an outside threat the answer was no. State Library staff was asked by the 11 

Board to take a look at the issue based on the concerns raised by the systems and the 12 

public libraries and we had done that to the best of our abilities.  13 

Member Buenafe said that it sounded to her like the word “contiguous” did not make 14 

a measurable difference in the regulations, but removing it was upsetting people. 15 

Member Buenafe said that she didn’t see why, if it didn’t really make a difference, they 16 

would use up their good will with the systems and remove the word. Vice-President 17 

Maghsoudi and Member Tauler agreed. Tauler felt that since the Board had the 18 

authority to make an exception, if they needed to they would.  19 

Member Christmas stated that he read the report and read all the comments 20 

provided by the systems and the libraries around the state and based on the report he 21 

did not see any purpose to having the word in the regulations. He agreed with the state 22 

library that the final authority for the make-up of the systems rested with the Board and 23 

since it was not in the actual law itself he advocated for its removal.   24 

Member Williams said that she was not sure if she understood how the word 25 

“contiguous” related to the distribution of materials because some of the letters had to 26 

do with concern over moving print materials from point A to point B. She felt that maybe 27 

the conversation they needed had to do with how libraries moved materials back and 28 

forth. She was unclear about how she felt since she did not think the word “contiguous” 29 

was needed in the regulations but could identify with the concerns.  30 



20 

Member Murguia asked if the maintenance of the word “contiguous” in the 1 

regulations would hamper the effort to share e-resources. Annly Roman said that she 2 

did not believe so; the systems were already sharing e-resources amongst themselves. 3 

Roman believed the issues the systems had with sharing centered on difficulty 4 

negotiating for some of those resources even within the larger systems, not 5 

contiguousness.  6 

President Bernardo stated that she would be in favor of removing the word 7 

“contiguous”. She found it limiting and outside of the Act itself. It was already set in the 8 

education code that the Cooperative Library Systems were those that were currently in 9 

existence and that could not be changed without a Board waiver. Annly Roman clarified 10 

that the Board could waive the contiguousness requirement in the regulations but could 11 

not allow the creation of a brand new system since the system definition was in statute 12 

instituted by the legislature, not regulations instituted and approved by the Board. 13 

Without an amendment to statute the creation of a brand new system that was not one 14 

of the legacy systems was not an option.  15 

Gerry Garzon, President of the Pacific Library Partnership library system, Director of 16 

the Oakland Public Library and speaking on behalf of the NorthNet Library System and 17 

their Chair, Mel Lightbody, stated that when the issue of the word “contiguous” first 18 

came up the libraries thought that its removal seemed like a solution in search of a 19 

problem. When he went back and read the April 2017 minutes it said that there was a 20 

sense that in the 21st century there was no reason why libraries should be required to 21 

have contiguous borders. Additionally, in other documents provided to the Board, the 22 

idea is presented that in an age of digital connections and alternate methods of 23 

resource sharing physical proximity need to be a necessity for partnerships. Garzon felt 24 

the sense being conveyed from libraries was that they were already sharing resources, 25 

it is not an issue.  26 

Garzon felt that keeping the language benefited resource sharing of physical items. 27 

There are over 5 million physical items that were shared annually. Libraries in the Bay 28 

area believed that the word “contiguous” added to the equity of what they gave to their 29 

communities. The Pacific Library Partnership believed that contiguous cooperative 30 

systems really contributed to how services were provided within the systems and 31 



21 

removal of the “contiguous” language appeared to allow that type of mix to be done 1 

away with. It seemed odd to be moving in the direction when so much of what the 2 

libraries and even the state and local governments are doing revolved around looking at 3 

how to invest and protect some of the most vulnerable populations.  4 

At the state level California was trying to look at how to address the increasing 5 

housing crisis, how to maintain health insurance for the newly insured, and guarantee 6 

legal representation for immigrants targeted for deportation. Public libraries work with all 7 

of those folks every day. Libraries had been and always would be the great equalizers 8 

in the community where all were welcome and there were materials and services 9 

available to meet each person’s needs. PLP and NorthNet believed that the current 10 

regulatory language had nothing that addressed equity and eliminating the “contiguous” 11 

language further reduced any type of equity that inherently existed in the current model.  12 

Gerry Garzon stated that the comments received by the Board represented a small 13 

portion of the public libraries in California saying, retention or removal was the Board’s 14 

decision but why make that decision because it is based on the idea that it was not 15 

necessary in a 21st century model.  16 

Member Buenafe asked Gerry Garzon about why removing the word “contiguous” 17 

might reduce the equity that libraries provide. She was unclear about the correlation. 18 

Garzon stated that libraries could never be sure who would be making decisions in the 19 

future and one of the concerns was that two systems or a number of libraries might 20 

decide to form a system and be able to make a strong argument to the Board that they 21 

were providing the best services. He stated that could happen and might shut out a 22 

number of vulnerable populations that they felt needed services. Libraries were saying if 23 

the “contiguous” word was not currently an issue and was not preventing libraries from 24 

operating in the current environment why was it being brought forward.  25 

Member Schockman stated that “contiguous” was in the current language, so as a 26 

Board they had to consider that while reading the law. The reality was that there was 27 

sharing all the time regardless of “contiguous” borders. Schockman stated that the 28 

Board’s mission and value statements talked about local control, local financing, 29 

services for the underserved, and resource sharing, so why would they allow some 30 

hypothetical mega systems that would destroy their values and mission. 31 



22 

Gerry Garza said that he was going to get away from that hypothetical, but there 1 

were a tremendous number of libraries that were telling the Board that they don’t 2 

understand why the word “contiguous” is being looked at. What the libraries were saying 3 

was that the word “contiguous” was not limiting them.  Gerry Garzon stated that he 4 

wanted to bring-up that while the word “contiguous” is not in the statute, it was in the 5 

regulatory language which was there to help interpret the law.  6 

Member Schockman asked if the item needed to be decided at the October meeting. 7 

Most Board members felt that since the Board had been discussing the issue for several 8 

meetings and since they would like to move the regulations forward the Board should 9 

make a decision.  10 

Michelle Perera, Pasadena Library, commented that she had sent a letter and was 11 

representing the Southern California Library Cooperative, and she wanted to echo 12 

Gerry Garza’s comments. She felt there was a lot of benefit to be had by keeping the 13 

language in the regulations.  14 

Member Williams stated that she did not understand the relation of the word 15 

contiguous to the fear of larger entities taking over the smaller entities. Member Tauler 16 

said the fear was not of taking over but of leaving behind. Member Williams stated that 17 

she could not imagine a compelling argument that could be made to the Board that 18 

would allow them to leave anyone behind given the Board’s mission.  Given that we 19 

didn’t know where we were headed digitally, she did not want to see great innovations 20 

be stifled over a fear of what might happen.  21 

President Bernardo asked Member Williams if she was saying that maybe sharing 22 

resources regardless of contiguous boarders was a violation of the regulations. State 23 

Librarian Lucas clarified that in the State Library staff’s examination of the law, 24 

contiguousness was a condition of affiliation, not a quality of resources sharing.  25 

Carol Frost, Pacific Library Partnership, stated that there were a lot of examples of 26 

libraries doing digital resource sharing effectively. In the NorthNet Library System funds 27 

were divided up by a formula so each library in NorthNet received a distribution of funds 28 

and then had a menu of services that they could chose to use their funds for such as 29 

delivery, Zinio, eBooks, etc. It was up to the individual libraries how they wanted to use 30 

those funds. Libraries could supplement those programs with their own individual funds 31 



23 

from the government. Similarly, there were 17 libraries in California that were sharing 1 

digital resources through the Cloud library. None of those libraries were using CLSA 2 

funds for that and it was working very efficiently. 3 

 Frost stated that when it came to sharing physical resources, that was where having 4 

“contiguous” could help because there was the qualification that funding depended on 5 

the delivery of items and they want the resources to represent an equitable distribution. 6 

They felt that the word “contiguous” was a safeguard in the regulations as a 7 

consideration of how resource sharing could happen.  8 

President Bernardo clarified that they were not satisfied that Education code 9 

sections 18743 and 18745 that imposed equal access to all residents in the area served 10 

by the systems was sufficient. Frost stated that was correct.  11 

It was moved, seconded (Tauler/Maghsoudi) and carried with a vote 12 
of seven aye votes (Buenafe, Ibanez, Maghsoudi, Mindnich, Murguia, 13 
Williams, Tauler), three no votes (Bernardo, Christmas, Huguenin), 14 
and one abstention (Schockman) that the California Library Services 15 
Board approves the retention of the word “contiguous” in California 16 
Library Services Act regulations, Sections 20180, 20185, and 20190. 17 
2:41:33 18 

Adjourned Open Session at 12:10pm. 19 

Resume Open Session Public Meeting at 1:30pm 20 

REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION 21 

President Bernardo resumed the public meeting of the California Library Services 22 

Board at 1:30pm.  23 

President Bernardo reported that the Board had completed their closed session and 24 

approved the performance evaluation, with amendments and a recommended 10% 25 

salary increase for the Administrative Assistant II to the California Library Services 26 

Board.  27 

LEGISLATIVE UPDATE 28 

Annly Roman reported that there were two measures the Board had taken positions 29 

on at the April 2017 Board meeting. First was CLA sponsored SCA 3 (Dodd) which 30 

moved through the legislative process but was held up at the end of session and did not 31 



24 

pass. Roman reported SCA 3 was held over on the inactive file and could be brought 1 

forward again the next year. There was a lot of work done by CLA and the Lobbyists 2 

trying to get the measure passed but it was a tough year because there was an early 3 

tax vote which caused many republicans and moderates to be hesitant about casting 4 

another positive vote on a tax related issue. Roman reported that CLA had discussed 5 

making SCA 3 a priority for next year as well.  6 

State Librarian Lucas stated that SCA 3 amended the constitution and required a 7 

two-thirds vote. If the measure did pass the Senate it would go to the more fractious 8 

Assembly where it would probably not have as good of a chance of passing. Lucas 9 

stated that a more likely bill to get bipartisan support would be something like a bond 10 

measure but that would have its own set of complexities.  11 

Roman reported that SB 390 passed through the legislative process but was vetoed 12 

by the Governor who stated the bill was unnecessary because he thought that the 13 

requirement to consider the Model School Library Curriculum was already included in 14 

the LCAP instructions. The Board did send a letter to the committees when the bill was 15 

under consideration as well as re-sending a letter to the Governor and his staff once it 16 

reached his desk letting them know of the Board’s support.  17 

Member Murguia asked if there was a need for the Board to communicate their 18 

support for SCA 3 to Senator Dodd or would they try to move the bill again. Annly 19 

Roman stated that the Board could do another letter of support to the Author although 20 

the Board’s original letter of support was sent directly to the Senator’s office and the bill 21 

had not changed since the letter was submitted. Roman stated she believed that 22 

Senator Dodd’s staff had expressed that they were still committed to moving the bill.  23 

It was moved, seconded (Christmas/Murguia) and carried 24 
unanimously that the California Library Services Board continues to 25 
support SCA 3 (Dodd) and directs State Library staff to draft a letter 26 
of continued support to Senator Dodd’s office on behalf of the 27 
California library Services Board. 28 

BOARD DISCUSSION ITEMS 2017/18 29 

Annly Roman stated that the Board had been provided with some documents to 30 

begin the discussion of a strategic plan. Staff had trouble finding the Board’s last full 31 

strategic plan but staff was able to provide Board actions which showed the vision 32 



25 

statement approved by the Board as well as the three year goals established and some 1 

of the background documentation from the planning session.  2 

Roman stated that it seemed, for the last plan, that the Board had identified some 3 

priorities then set objectives under those areas that either individual Board members or 4 

a committee of two members worked toward or provided additional information. Roman 5 

thought the first step would be to look at the Board’s mission and vision and see if the 6 

Board felt those were still viable or needed to be changed. 7 

Member Schockman clarified that the last strategic plan dated back to 2000.  He 8 

stated that it seemed like there was an ad hoc committee formed at one point with a 9 

Chair and the committee drove the process with the rest of the Board providing opinion 10 

or getting involved at varying levels. Member Schockman asked if staff saw that as a 11 

strategic use of the Board’s time.  12 

Annly Roman responded that it definitely could be but felt it would be more difficult 13 

because when the last plan was completed the Board had a lot more money, and 14 

programs. Roman stated she did think there were areas where the Board could set 15 

priorities and where they might want to be more active and strategic, say legislatively.   16 

Member Schockman stated that it looked like the session took place at the Hyatt and 17 

asked if the Board came in early to take independent time for discussion. Annly Roman 18 

stated that the Board did have a separate session and that Marilyn Snyder had 19 

facilitated. Schockman asked if she was still around. Roman stated that she was and 20 

had facilitated strategic planning sessions for the State Library but she was unclear on if 21 

the Board would have funds to purchase Marilyn’s time. Member Schockman asked if 22 

they could look for a pro-bono facilitator. He felt that there should be an independent 23 

facilitator to ensure that everyone could be involved. Annly Roman stated that they 24 

could try to find someone who could facilitate outside of a Board member.  25 

State Librarian Lucas stated that elements of the strategic plan could be about what 26 

the Board used to do and there was a need for the Board to be doing some of those 27 

things now. There should also be consideration of what the Board ought to be rather 28 

than only centering on what it was currently doing. 29 

Member Schockman asked if they would be looking at a three year or five year plan. 30 

Annly Roman stated she thought the Board should start with a three year plan which 31 



26 

could be updated as needed within that period of time. Member Williams asked if they 1 

were considering doing a planning session the day before the April meeting and Board 2 

members agreed with the idea of a half-day session.   3 

Member Schockman stated that he would be honored to co-chair an ad hoc strategic 4 

planning committee. Member Williams indicated she would be willing to co-chair as well.  5 

It was moved, seconded (Ibanez, Huguenin) and carried unanimously 6 
that the California Library Services Board appoints Dr. Eric 7 
Schockman and Connie Williams as Co-Chairs of the ad-hock 8 
Strategic Planning Committee.  9 

I.   PUBLIC COMMENT10 

There was no public comment brought forward. 11 

J.   COMMENTS FROM BOARD MEMBERS/OFFICERS12 

Member Buenafe shared that she had met with the Los Angeles County Public 13 

Library and she was meeting with San Francisco Public Library on Friday to talk about 14 

some pilot programs to have releasing offenders leave with a library card for the 15 

jurisdiction they would be returning to. The resources available at a public library were 16 

familiar to many in the library world but a lot of those being released had no idea they 17 

could get on the internet for free or that that they had, especially in the large urban 18 

libraries, workshops on job skills or resources for housing.  19 

Buenafe stated that the next step was to have a pilot program at LA County’s 20 

institution, which is in Lancaster. The folks there who took a pre-release class called 21 

“Transitions,” would get a lesson about library services as part of their five week class 22 

as well as a paper library card that allowed them access to all the electronic services. 23 

They would be able to go into a branch and exchange it for a permanent card that 24 

allowed them to check out materials.  25 

That kind of partnership between public libraries and institutional libraries was 26 

something Buenafe thought would help reduce recidivism and she was encouraged by 27 

how enthusiastic the public libraries were. She felt that there had been a change in 28 

California about how the incarcerated were perceived and since 95% would eventually 29 

go back into communities, this was a way to help them be successful.  30 



27 

Member Ibanez stated that he attended, as an observer, the Pasadena Library’s 1 

community conversations with librarians, headed by Cindy Mediavilla.  He felt it was a 2 

very interesting conversation. He also wanted to encourage Board members to attend 3 

the President’s dinner at the CLA. He would be playing in the band.  4 

Member Williams stated that the Sonoma County Libraries were closed during the 5 

fires because there were no basic services. There was some very good planning going 6 

on for services for the displaced members of the community. No branches were burned 7 

and while the Archives were a very deep concern they were unharmed as well.  8 

K.  OLD BUSINESS9 

There was no old business brought forward. 10 

L.  AGENDA BUILDING11 

There was no additional agenda items brought forward. 12 

M.  ADJOURNMENT13 

President Bernardo called for adjournment of the California Library Services Board 14 

meeting at 2:02pm with thoughts toward friends and colleagues in California struggling 15 

with the fires. 16 



28 

Exhibit A



29 

1 

Exhibit B



30 

Exhibit C



California Library Services Board Resolution 2018-01 
In Honor of Dr. H. Eric Schockman  

WHEREAS, the California Library Services Board desires to recognize
Dr. H. Eric Schockman for his distinguished contributions as one of its members on the 
occasion of the conclusion of his term of service as a member of the board; and 

WHEREAS, the board wishes to honor Dr. H. Eric Schockman for his exceptional public 
service and engagement representing the “Public-at-Large” since his appointment by the 
Senate Rules Committee on November 12, 2013; and 

WHEREAS, it should be noted that Dr. H. Eric Schockman serves as Chair and Associate 
Professor at the Center for Leadership at Woodbury University, and as an adjunct Professor 
at the Sol Price School of Public Policy at the University of Southern California; he was a 
former Associate Professor and Associate Dean at the University of Southern California; 
and ran the Edmund G “Pat” Brown Institute for Public Affairs at CSULA and the Jesse M. 
Unruh Institute of Politics at USC; and 

WHEREAS, Dr. H. Eric Schockman served as President and CEO of an international anti-
hunger agency for over a decade, is the President and founder of the Global Hunger 
Foundation, served as the chairman of the National Anti-Hunger Organization, was a 
member of the National Interfaith Hunger director’s committee and the Alliance to End 
Hunger, and was on the Board of Directors of the Global Food Banking Network;   

WHEREAS, Dr. H. Eric Schockman served in the Peace Corps and taught agriculture and 
sustainable development in Sierra Leone, and West Africa 

WHEREAS, Dr. H. Eric Schockman was appointed to the California Postsecondary 
Education Commission in 2007 by Governor Schwarzenegger, and served on the Little 
Hoover Commission;  

WHEREAS, Dr. H. Eric Schockman’s insight, public policy knowledge, and enthusiasm 
have proven invaluable to the California Library Services Board;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that 

the California Library Services Board 
extends its sincere appreciation and deep regard to 

Dr. H. Eric Schockman 

for his contributions and service 
to the libraries and people of the State of California 

on this day of 17 April, 2018 

Document 2



 Document 3 

AGENDA ITEM:  2018/2019 Meeting Schedule and Locations 

2017 Proposed Board Meeting Schedule 

Date 

October 4, 2018 

April 2019 

Location 

Sacramento 

Sacramento? 

Activities 

Regular Business 
Annual Budget Meeting 
Election of Board Officers for 
year 2019 
LSTA State Advisory Council 
on Libraries Meeting  

Legislative Visits? 
Budget and Planning 
Election of the Nominating 
Committee 

BACKGOUND: 

California Library Services Act (CLSA) regulations specify that the Board shall conduct bi-
monthly meetings; however, Section 20118 (c) states: 

“(c) Nothing in this regulation shall be construed to prevent the state board from 
altering its regular meeting dates or places of meetings.” 

Staff has provided members with a Doodle Poll for the Fall 2018 meeting which will be held 
on October 4, 2018. The question for Board members is when and where to schedule the 
Spring 2019 meeting. A calendar of upcoming and future library-related events and dates is 
included to this agenda item as Exhibit A. 

INFORMATION 



Exhibit A 

CALENDAR OF UPCOMING LIBRARY-RELATED EVENTS AND DATES 
The following is a list of upcoming library-related events and dates worth noting: 

2018 
ARL (Association of Research Libraries) Association Meeting  April 24-26, 2018 Atlanta, GA 

SLA (Special Libraries Association) Annual Conference & Info Expo June 9-13, 2018 Baltimore, MD 

PLA (Public Library Association) at ALA June 21-26, 2018 New Orleans, LA 

ALA (American Library Association) Annual Conference June 21-26, 2018 New Orleans, LA 

AALL (American Association of Law Libraries) Annual Meeting and 
Conference 

July 14-17, 2018 Baltimore, MD 

American Association of Archivist August 12-18, 2018 Washington, D.C. 

IFLA (International Federation of Library Associations & Institutions) 
General Conference & Assembly 

August 24-30, 2018 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia 

State Bar of California Annual Meeting September 13-14, 2018 Los Angeles, CA, CA 

ARL (Association of Research Libraries) Association Meeting, Fall 2018 September 24-27, 2018 Washington, DC 

Joint Conference for Librarians of Color September 26-30, 2018 Albuquerque, NM 

Educause Annual Conference 
October 30-November 
2, 2018 

Denver, CO 

CLA (California Library Association) Annual Conference November 9-11, 2018 Santa Clara, CA 

2019 
ALA (American Library Association) Midwinter Conference January 25-29, 2019 Seattle, WA 

California School Library Association 2019 Conference February 7-10, 2019 City of Industry, CA 

ACRL (Association of College & Research Libraries) 2017 Conference April 10-13, 2019 Cleveland, OH 

ALA (American Library Association) Annual Conference June 20-25, 2019 Washington, DC 

AALL (American Association of Law Libraries) Annual Meeting and 
Conference 

July 13-16, 2019 Washington, DC 

ARL (Association of Research Libraries) Association Meeting, Fall 2019 September 23-26, 2019 Washington, DC 

Educause Annual Conference October 14-17, 2019 Chicago, IL 

AASL (American Association of School Libraries) National Conference November 14-16, 2019 Louisville, KY 



Document 4 

AGENDA ITEM:   Nominating Committee for 2019 Board Officers 

ISSUES TO COME BEFORE THE BOARD AT THIS MEETING:  Consider 
candidates to the Nominating Committee for 2019 Board Officers 

BACKGROUND: 

California Library Services Act regulations, Section 20116 (a), state that, “The state board 
shall annually elect a president and vice-president at the first regular meeting of each 
calendar year.”  It has been Board policy to elect Board officers at the last meeting of the 
calendar year so the new officers may begin their term in the new calendar year.   

The Board will appoint two of its members to serve on the Nominating Committee and to 
report to the Board at its fall meeting the slate of Board Officer for 2019. In the absence of 
regulations prescribing the form and method for electing officers, according to Code of 
California Regulations Section 20127, the CLSB is guided by procedures set forth in 
Robert’s Rules of Order, Newly Revised, Chapter XIV, Nominations and Elections. 

ACTION 

RECOMMENDED MOTION FOR CONSIDERATION BY THE BOARD: I move that 
the California Library Services Board appoint ______________ and _______________ 
to the Nominating Committee to select Board Officers for 2019. 































TITLE 5. CALIFORNIA STATE LIBRARY/CALIFORNIA LIBRARY SERVICES ACT 

Update to Regulations Implementing the Library Services Act; Procedures of the California Library 

Services Board 

NOTICE OF CONSIDERATION OF PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE CALIFORNIA LIBRARY SERVICES ACT 

REGULATIONS  

The California Library Services Board (CLSB or Board) will conduct a public hearing at the time and place 

noted below to consider approving for adoption the proposed amendments to the California Library 

Services Act Regulations.  

DATE: April 17, 2018  

TIME: At the conclusion of the California Library Services Board meeting beginning at 9:30 a.m. 

LOCATION: Stanley Mosk Library and Courts Building, 914 Capitol Mall, Room 500, Sacramento, CA 

95814.  

This item will be considered after a meeting of the Board, which will commence at 9:30 a.m., April 17, 

2018. Any additional meeting information, including the agenda, will be posted at 

http://www.library.ca.gov/services/to‐libraries/ca‐library‐services‐act/ under “Board Meetings”. Please 

consult the agenda for the meeting, which will be available at least ten days before April 17, 2018, to 

determine when this item will be considered.  

WRITTEN COMMENT PERIOD AND SUBMITTAL OF COMMENTS:   

Interested members of the public may present comments orally or in writing at the hearing and may 

provide written comments by physical mail or electronic submittal before the hearing. The public 

comment period for this regulatory action will begin on the date this notice is published, March 2, 2018. 

Written comments not physically submitted at the hearing must be received no later than 5:00 p.m. on 

April 20, 2018. Comments submitted prior to the hearing must be addressed to one of the following: 

Physical mail: Annly Roman, California Library Services Board, California State Library, P.O. Box 942837, 

Sacramento, CA 94237 or Electronic submittal: annly.roman@library.ca.gov.  Please note that under the 

California Public Records Act (Gov. Code, § 6250 et seq.), your written and oral comments, attachments, 

and associated contact information (e.g., your address, phone, email, etc.) become part of the public 

record and can be released to the public upon request.  

AUTHORITY AND REFERENCE:  

This regulatory action is proposed under that authority granted in California Education Code, sections 

18724 and 18725. The changes are proposed to conform, update, and delete provisions related to 

sections  18702, 18703, 18710, 18720, 18724, 18726, 18731, 18740, 18741 (repealed, 2016), 18743, 

18745, 18746, 18747, 18765 (repealed, 2016)  of the Education Code.  

INFORMATIVE DIGEST / POLICY STATEMENT OVERVIEW:  

Sections Affected: Proposed amendment to California Code of Regulations, title 5, sections 20101, 

20105, 20107, 20116, 20118, 20119, 20122, 20123, 20124, 20125, 20127, 20130, 20134, 20135, 20136, 

Document 8



20140, 20158, 20180, 20185, 20190, 20203, 20205, 20215, 20216, 20217, 20235, 20236, 20251, 20252, 

20255, 20257, 20260, and  20265.  

Background and Effect of the Proposed Regulatory Action:  

Section 18700‐18767 of the California Education Code creates the California Library Services Act (Act) to 

facilitate greater equality of access to library services and resources regardless of location, income, or 

education level, especially in communities where people lack or have barriers to information and library 

services.  

Sections 18720‐18726 detail the administration of the California Library Services Act, which is done by 

an appointed Board of 13 representatives of various section of the library community as well as the 

California State Librarian who serves as the chief executive officer of the Board.  

Section 18731 and 18743 of the Education Code encourage equal access by allowing libraries to 

participate in universal borrowing, allowing anyone to check out items from their library regardless of 

residence, and requiring all member libraries of a Cooperative Library System to provide equal access to 

all residents of the system, not just those in an the library’s immediate area. 

As originally enacted in 1977, the Act authorized various programs to help libraries share resources and 

opportunities for public libraries to seek grant funds allocated under the Act. These programs included 

the application of public libraries to the California Library Services Board for grant funds to create 

targeted programs, reimbursements for costs associated with the loaning of physical materials, 

statewide coordinated reference centers, funding for program assessment, and grants to facilitate the 

communication and delivery of information and materials within and between Cooperative Library 

Systems. These programs were funded, at varying levels, with state funding. Due to budget constraints 

funding for the California Library Services Act was gradually reduced until 2010 when it was eliminated 

altogether. A small amount of funding was later restored only to the communication and delivery 

program established in section 18745 of the Education Code.  

In 2016 the California Library Services Act was amended to remove references to the obsolete programs 

which no longer received funding; including references to the Interlibrary Loan Program, 

reimbursements for costs associated with loaning physical materials, and grant programs supporting 

changes in Cooperative Library System membership. Additionally, changes were made to modernize the 

Act. Originally the act was written to facilitate the sharing of print materials. Changes were made to the 

act to include digital materials and resource sharing in the services that could receive funding under the 

Act and under the communication and delivery program. 

The California Library Services Act has existing regulations in place which give policies and procedures 

for the running of the Board, notice and posting requirements for meetings, and designated meeting 

processes that must be followed. The current regulations also address the administration of the 

Cooperative Library Systems (Systems) in California, clarify reporting requirements, and  requirements 

for consolidations of Systems or process for libraries wishing to join or change Systems. Finally, the 

regulations provide guidance on the library eligibility to participate in grant programs and 



reimbursements for programs set forth in the related statute, the related reporting requirements, and 

general administration of the programs. 

The proposed action will conform the regulations to changes which have been made to the related 

statute under the Education Code. These changes include removing obsolete reimbursement and grant 

program provisions that are no longer supported by state funds or statute. Additionally, the proposed 

action will change the meeting requirements to conform to current Bagley‐Keen (Bagley‐Keen Act) Open 

Meeting Act (Government Code, sections 11120‐11131) requirements. The California Library Services 

Board is required, under the government code to abide by notice and meeting procedure requirements 

dictated under the Bagley‐Keen Act but the California Library Services Act regulations, as currently 

written, do not reflect these requirements and often list posting and procedural requirements which 

contradict current required practices.  These changes will clean‐up the regulatory language and do away 

with the confusion caused by conflicting regulatory and statutory requirements. 

The proposed amendments to the California Library Services Act regulations also update the regulations 

to reflect the ability, added to statute in 2016, of Cooperative Library Systems to use remaining 

Communication and Delivery program grant funds for resource sharing and delivery of digital materials. 

The amendments also clarify the use of funds for technology supporting shared resources or digital 

resources to ensure that, on a go forward basis, there is a uniform interpretation of what is allowed 

under the corresponding statute.  

CONSISTENCY EVALUATION:  

No additional federal, state, or local regulations dealing with this or similar program were discovered 

that proved inconsistent or incompatible with the proposed regulatory action.  

LOCAL MANDATE: 

The California State Library has determined that there is no mandate imposed on local agencies or 

school districts by these regulations.  

FISCAL IMPACT/COST IMPACTS: 

The California State Library has determined that the changes to these regulations will result in: no cost 

to any local agency or school district requiring reimbursement pursuant to Government Code sections 

17500 through 17630; no cost or savings to any state agency; no other discretionary cost or savings 

imposed upon local agencies; and no cost or savings in federal funding to the state. The agency is not 

aware of any cost impacts that a representative private person or business would necessarily incur in 

reasonable compliance with the proposed action. The California State Library has determined that the 

proposed regulations will not have a significant, statewide adverse economic impact directly affecting 

business, including the ability of California businesses to compete with businesses in other states. 

RESULTS OF THE ECONOMIC IMPACT ASSESSMENT:  

The California State Library has concluded that it is: unlikely that the proposal will eliminate or create 

any jobs and/or eliminate or have any impact on existing business; and unlikely that this proposal may 

lead to the creation of new business or expand business currently operating in California. The proposed 



regulatory changes will be unlikely to have any impact to the health or welfare of California residents, 

worker safety, or the states environment.  

BUSINESS/SMALL BUSINESS: The existing California Library Services Act regulations already contain a 

reporting requirement for California Cooperative Library Systems and no new reporting requirements 

are added in the proposed changes to the regulations. The current reporting requirement only applies to 

the California Cooperative Library Systems and does not apply to outside business. The California State 

Library has also determined that the proposed action does not affect small business. 

CONSIDERATION OF ALTERNATIVES In accordance with Government Code section 11346.5, subdivision 

(a)(13), the Department must determine that no reasonable alternative it considered, or that has 

otherwise been identified and brought to the attention of the Department, would be more effective in 

carrying out the purpose for which the action is proposed, or would be as effective and less burdensome 

to affected private persons than the proposed action, or would be more cost−effecƟve to affected 

private persons and equally effective in implementing the statutory policy or other provision of law. The 

California State Library invites interested persons to present statements or arguments putting forward 

alternatives to the proposed regulations, at the scheduled hearing or during the written comment 

period.  

CONTACT PERSON:  

Inquiries concerning the proposed administrative action may be directed to: Annly Roman by mail at: 

California Library Services Board, California State Library, P.O. Box 942837, Sacramento, CA 94237; by 

email: annly.roman@library.ca.gov; or telephone: (916) 323‐0057. The alternative contact person to 

obtain information concerning the proposed administrative action is: Monica Rivas, reachable by mail at 

Library Development Services Bureau, California State Library, P.O. Box 942837, Sacramento, CA 94237; 

or by phone at (916) 653‐5471. Please direct requests for copies of the proposed text of the regulations, 

the initial statement of reasons, the modified text of the regulation, if any, or other information upon 

which the rulemaking is based to Annly Roman at the above contact information. 

 AVAILABILITY OF STATEMENT OF REASONS AND TEXT OF PROPOSED REGULATIONS:  

The California State Library will have the rulemaking file available for inspection and copying throughout 

the rulemaking process at the Stanley Mosk Library and Courts Building, 914 Capitol Mall, Suite 220, 

Sacramento, CA 95814. As of the date this notice is published in the Notice Register, the rulemaking file 

consists of this notice; the proposed text of the regulations; the initial statement of reasons; California 

Library Services Board Actions to approve initial language; and any petitions received from industry. 

Copies may be obtained by contacting Annly Roman at the address, email address, or phone number 

listed above.  

AVAILABILITY OF CHANGED OR MODIFIED TEXT:  

After considering all timely and relevant comments, the California State Library in conjunction with the 

California Library Services Board may amend the proposed regulations. Any modified text will be made 

available to the public at least 15 days before the California Library Services Board adopts the 

regulations as revised. Written comments will be accepted on the modified regulations for 15 days after 



they are made available Please send requests for copies of any modified regulations to the attention of 

Annly Roman at the address, or email address listed above.  

AVAILABILITY OF FINAL STATEMENT OF REASONS: 

Upon its completion, copies of the Final Statement of Reasons may be obtained by contacting Annly 

Roman at the address or email address listed above. Additionally, the Final Statement of Reasons will be 

available through the California State Libraries website at http://www.library.ca.gov/services/to‐

libraries/ca‐library‐services‐act/. 

AVAILABILITY OF DOCUMENTS ON THE INTERNET:  

Copies of the Notice of Proposed Action, the Initial Statement of Reasons, and the text of the proposed 

changes to the regulations can be accessed through the California State Libraries website at 

http://www.library.ca.gov/services/to‐libraries/ca‐library‐services‐act/.  



CALIFORNIA LIBRARY SERVICES REGULATIONS 
(Code of California Regulations, Title 5, Division 2, Chapter 1, Subchapter 2, 

Articles 1-8, Sec. 20101-20265) 

SUBCHAPTER 2. CALIFORNIA LIBRARY SERVICES 

ARTICLE 1. GENERAL PROVISIONS 

§ 20101. General Provisions.
(b) Any public library participating in programs of the Act shall, under section
18724(g)(e) of the Act, provide access to the library's bibliographic and location data
upon request from the State Board for inclusion in the appropriate database established
by the State Board in implementation of the Act. The access shall be provided in such
form, manner, and frequency as are agreed upon between the State Board and the
library.

Authority: Section 18724 and 18725, Education Code, Reference: Sections 18724, 
Education Code 

§ 20105. General Requirements for Participation.
(b) Public Library Certification. Upon the authorization by the jurisdictional governing
body, the head librarian of each public library wishing to participate in the programs of
the Act must file a certification of compliance with provisions of the Act. This certification
shall remain in effect until the library jurisdiction no longer complies with the stated
provisions. The certification shall specifically include compliance with Education Code
Sections 18703(c) and 18724(e)(d). If the library or jurisdiction is no longer in
compliance, the head librarian shall notify the Board no later than thirty days following
such a change in compliance status.

Authority: Section 18724 and 18725, Education Code, Reference: Sections 18703 and 
18724, Education Code 

§ 20107. Definitions.
(a) The definitions concerning California Library Services Act components set forth in
Education Code Section 18710 are hereby incorporated by reference, with additions as
noted in subsection (b) of this section. The definitions incorporated by reference are
accurate to California Statutes 19792016.
(b) Additions to the regulations hereby incorporated are as follows:
(1) “Board Assistant” means the Administrative Assistant II position designated to the
Board 
(1)(2) “Chief Executive Officer” means the State Librarian. 
(2)(2) “President” means the elected President of the Board. 
(3)(3) “Public library affiliation” means the formal and legal joining to a System (i.e. the 
obtaining of full System membership status) by a public library not previously a member 
of any System. A Public Library Affiliation is not considered complete until all necessary 
local System and jurisdictional agreements have been approved and are in force, and 
the State Board has approved the affiliation. 



(4)(4) “Public library consolidation” means the formal and legal joining of the functions, 
services, operations, etc. of two or more formerly independent public libraries into a 
single public library, as defined in Education Code Section 18710 (f). A Public Library 
Consolidation is not considered complete until all necessary local jurisdictional 
agreements have been approved and are in force, and the State Board has approved 
the consolidation (see Administrative Code Section 20180, below). 
(5) “Resource Sharing” refers to the allowed use or application of a resource created,
purchased,  or leased by one (1) or more participating libraries’ with three (3) or more 
participating libraries.  
(5) Reference collection. Reference collection means a collection of materials, both print
and non-print, designed primarily for use in answering requests for information.
(6) Reference specialist. Reference specialist means a trained and experienced
librarian who can provide reference referral services and who can also understand how
to approach the community in general and the undeserved in particular, together with
appropriate skills in analysis of information needs and design and implementation of
reference programs responsive to those needs. A reference specialist may be employed
in providing any of the services for which he/she is qualified.
(7) “Secretary” means the Executive Secretary of the Board.
(8) “State Board” means the California Library Services Board.
(9)(6) “System consolidation” means the formal and legal joining of geographic service
areas, functions, operations, etc. of two or more formerly separate Systems into a single
Cooperative Library System, as defined in Education Code Section 18710 (c). A System
Consolidation is not considered complete until all necessary local System consolidation
agreements have been approved and are in force, and until the State Board has
approved the consolidation (see Administrative Code Section 20185, below).
(10)(7) “Valid non-resident borrowers card” means a card that is issued free of charge
by a public library to a resident of another jurisdiction which maintains a public library,
as long as such card meets all of the legal requirements of the issuing library.
(11)(8) “Vice-President” means the elected Vice-President of the Board.

Authority: Section 18724, Education Code, Reference: Sections 18700-18767, 
Education Code 

ARTICLE 2. CALIFORNIA LIBRARY SERVICES BOARD PROCEDURES 

§ 20116. Officers of the State Board.
(a) The State Board shall annually biennially elect a President and Vice-President at the
first last regular meeting of each every odd numbered calendar year.

Authority: Section 18724, Education Code. Reference: Section 18720 and 18724, 
Education Code. 

§ 20118. Regular Meetings.
(a) Date. Regular meetings of the State Board shall take place at least  bi-monthly on
the third Thursday of the months of February, April, June, August, October; the



December meeting shall be held in conjunction with the California Library Association 
conference once each year. 
(b) Place. The tentative time of year and locations for the regular meetings of in the
following forthcoming calendar year shall be determined annually, at the last regular
meeting of the calendar year.
(c) Change of date or place. Nothing in this regulation shall be construed to prevent the
State Board from altering its regular meeting dates or places of meeting location.
(d) Meeting notice. A notice of regular meetings shall be provided at least seven days
prior to the meeting date to any person annually requesting such notice under section
20119 below. Such notice shall include the time, date, and place of the regular meeting
and a copy of the agenda therefor  Notices of regular meetings shall comply with all
requirements laid out in Government Code sections 11120-11131.
(e) Any person or organization desiring to receive notice(s) of State Board meetings
may email the current Board Assistant or direct the request to: California Library 
Services Board, State Librarian’s Office, California State Library, P.O. Box 942837, 
Sacramento, CA 94237-0001. 

Authority: Section 18724, Education Code. Reference: Section 18720 and 18724, 
Education Code. 

§ 20119. Notices.
(a) Eligibility. Notice of any regular or special public meeting of the State Board shall be
given to any person annually requesting under section 20119(b).
(b) Procedure. Individuals and organizations wishing to receive notice of regular and
special meetings of the State Board and copies of the agenda may annually request the
Secretary to include their names on the mailing list. Inclusion on the mailing list will
result in notification to the addressee of all regular and special meetings of the State
Board. The Secretary shall annually notify interested agencies and organizations that,
upon request, they are entitle to be placed on the mailing list.

Authority: Section 18724, Education Code. Reference: Section 18720 and 18724, 
Education Code. 

§ 20122. Special Meetings.
Special meetings may be called by the President of the State Board or a majority of the
members thereof for any stated purpose. Notice of such meetings shall be provided at
least 24 hours in advance to those persons so requesting under section 20119(b).
Special meetings shall comply with all special meeting provisions in Government Code
sections 11120-11131.

Authority: Section 18724, Education Code. Reference: Section 18720 and 18724, 
Education Code. 



§ 20123. Emergency Meetings and Agenda Items.
(a) Power. An emergency meeting may be called by the President of the State Board or
a majority of the members thereof without providing the notice required by section
20119 section 20118(d) if there is an unforeseen emergency condition in existence.
(b) Definition. An unforeseen emergency condition exists when there is an immediate
threat of adverse effects on the program authorized by the Act of such scope that
requires action of the State Board to avert such effects.
(c) Agenda Items. An item may be included on the agenda of any regular meeting if an
unforeseen emergency condition exists without the notice required by section 20119
section 20118(d).
(d) Certification. Concurrence of 7 of the members is required to certify that an
emergency condition exists in order to take any action at an emergency meeting or
regarding an emergency item.
(e) Notice. If reasonably possible, notice of the emergency item or meeting shall be
provided to those so requesting under section 20119(b)20118(e).  Lack of such notice
shall not invalidate any action taken on said item or at said meeting.

Authority: Section 18724, Education Code. Reference: Section 18720 and 18724, 
Education Code. 

§ 20124. Agenda.
(a) All matters to be submitted for consideration of the State Board shall be sent to the
Secretary to the Board Assistant at least 10 15 business days preceding a regular
meeting of the State Board, by email or by mail at California Library Services Board,
California State Library, P.O. Box 942837, Sacramento, CA 94237-0001.
(b) Setting of Agenda. The agenda for regular meetings of the State Board shall be set
by the Chief Executive Officer at least 8 12 business days prior to the meeting.

Authority: Section 18724, Education Code. Reference: Section 18720 and 18724, 
Education Code. 

§ 20125. Speakers.
(a) Recognition of Speakers. Members of the public or the State Library staff will may be
recognized by the President of the State Board to speak at any State Board meeting. All
remarks made shall be germane to the business at hand and shall be addressed to the
President. No person other than the person having the floor and members of the State
Board shall be permitted to enter the discussion.
(b) Subject of Remarks. All speakers before the State Board shall confine their remarks
to the subject indicated in their written request, or indicated in the recognition by for
which they were recognized by the President.

Authority: Section 18724, Education Code. Reference: Section 18720 and 18724, 
Education Code. 

§ 20127. Robert's Rules of Order.
Except where the provisions of the California Library Services Act of 19772016 or of



these regulations provide to the contrary, or when the State Board determines 
otherwise, the State Board shall operate under the latest edition of Robert's Rules of 
Order. 

Authority: Section 18724, Education Code. Reference: Section 18720 and 18724, 
Education Code. 

§ 20130. Public Hearings.
(c) Speakers.
(1) Notice. Persons wishing to address the State Board on a subject to be considered at
a public hearing, should present a request to the Secretary Board Assistant four (4)
working days in advance of the meeting at the office of the Secretary by email, or in
person at the Board Assistant’s Office, at the Stanley Mosk Library-Courts Building, 914
Capitol Mall, Sacramento California 95814, stating the subject they wish to address, the
organization they represent, if any, and the nature of their testimony. Persons wishing to
address the Board, who have not presented a request four days in advance, may be
heard at the discretion of the presiding officer.
(2) Copies of Statement. The speaker may provide a written copy of his statement to the
Secretary Board Assistant 24 hours in advance of the hearing.

Authority: Section 18724, Education Code. Reference: Section 18720 and 18724, 
Education Code. 

§ 20134. Public Records.
(a) Inspection of Public Records.
(1) Inspection of the original copy of any public record of the State Board (as defined in
Government Code section 6252(d) and 6254) will be permitted during regular office
hours of the State Library, Stanley Mosk Library-Courts Building, 914 Capitol Mall,
Sacramento California 95814.
(2) Requests to inspect such records should be filed with the Secretary Board Assistant
at least five working days prior to the requested date in order to insure availability.
(3) Requests for inspection should be as specific as possible in identifying the records
desired.
(4) Original copies of public records shall not be removed from the office the Secretary
Stanley Mosk Library-Courts Building.
(b) Obtaining Copies of Public Records.
(1) Requests to obtain copies of public records may be made in person or by mail to the
office of the Secretary Board Assistant at California Library Services Board, California
State Library, P.O. Box 942837, Sacramento, CA 94237-0001.
(2) Such requests should be as specific as possible in identifying the records desired.
(3) Certification of the authenticity of copies may be obtained from the Secretary Board
Assistant.



Authority: Section 18724, Education Code. Reference: Section 18720 and 18724, 
Education Code. 

ARTICLE 3. GENERAL PROVISIONS FOR SYSTEMS 

§ 20135. System Budget Request and Plan of Service.
(1) A population profile. This shall be no more than five three years old, and shall use
the most current data available.
(2) A description of the users and the non-users of the services of the members of the
System.
(3) A description of the services provided by the System.
(4) A list of the major unmet information needs of the population of the System area.
(5) (4)A plan for the use of CLSA funds, listing each of the services(s) in (3) above
which the System plans to maintain or improve, and each of the unmet needs in (4)
above which the System plans to address. Under each such service to be provided, the
plan shall include:.
(b) Budget. The System budget shall document in the form and manner prescribed by
the State Board the dollar amounts to be expended for providing each System service
or addressing each unmet need.
(d) Membership and Population Figures. The State Board shall periodically, and at least
annually, review and approve the membership and population figures, and determine an 
appropriate funding formula which shall be uniform statewide. 

Authority: Section 18724, Education Code. Reference: Section 18724(d), 18710(c), 
18710(o), 18740, 18746, and 18747, Education Code. 

§ 20136. System Administrative Policy Manual.
Each System participating in programs of the Act must develop by July 1, 1979, a
System Administrative Policy Manual which shall include along with any other items the
System finds useful, its policies for:

Authority: Section 18724, Education Code. Reference: Section 18710(c), 18710(o), 
18740, 18746, and 18747, Education Code. 

§ 20140. System Administration.
(a) Cooperative Library Systems. The System Administrative Council shall consist of the
head librarian of each jurisdiction in the system. In case of the head librarian's absence,
an official delegate or alternate may vote in place of the head librarian. It shall have
regular meetings, open and accessible to the public as required in the Ralph M. Brown
Act (Govt. Code Section 54950-549613). Information about the meetings of the Council
shall be disseminated in such a way and in such languages as the Council determines
will most effectively inform the public of the Council's activities. The Council shall
provide for the position of a Council Chair-person, and for rotation of that position
among the Council members.

Authority: Section 18724, Education Code. Reference: Section 18710(c), 18710(o), 
18740, and 18747, Education Code. 



ARTICLE 4. SYSTEM REFERENCE 

§ 20158. Allowance.
Each System shall receive an annual allowance based on the number of member
libraries of the System and on the total population served by that System. The State
Board shall periodically, and at least annually, review and approve the membership and
population figures, and determine an appropriate funding formula which shall be uniform
statewide.

Authority: Section 18724, Education Code. Reference: Section 18724 and 
18741(repealed 2016), Education Code. 

ARTICLE 5: CONSOLIDATIONS AND AFFILIATIONS 

§ 20180. Public Library Consolidations.
(a) If any two or more contiguous jurisdictions operating public libraries wish to
consolidate their libraries into a single library agency and receive establishment grants
under Education Code Section 18732, a joint notice of intent signed by the head
librarians of the consolidating jurisdictions must be filed with the State Board no later
than September 1 of the fiscal year immediately preceding the effective date for
consolidation. Authorizations to consolidate, approved by the governing body of each
consolidating jurisdiction, and a joint plan for provision of consolidated services, signed
by the head librarians, must be filed with the State Board no later than June 1 of the
fiscal year immediately preceding the effective date of the consolidation.
(b) The State Board's approval of requests for library consolidation funds under
Education Code Section 18732 shall be based on its determination that the
consolidation provides a more effective means of carrying out the purposes of the Act
than would be the case if the consolidation did not occur.
(c) For purposes of determining the eligibility of the consolidating jurisdictions to receive
funds under other provisions of the Act, a A public library consolidation approved by the
State Board will be considered effective beginning July 1 of the fiscal year immediately
following the fiscal year in which the consolidation authorizations are filed.

Authority: Section 18724, Education Code. Reference: Section 18724 and 18726c, 
Education Code. 

§ 20185. System Consolidations.
(a) If any two or more Systems whose borders are contiguous wish to consolidate and
receive a consolidation grant under Education Code Section 18751, a joint notice of
intent, approved by the Administrative Councils of the consolidating systems, must be
filed with the State Board no later than September 1 of the fiscal year immediately
preceding the effective date of consolidation. System participation authorizations
approved by the jurisdictional governing body of each of the System's member libraries,
and a new system plan of Service and budget, must be filed with the State Board no
later than June 1 of the fiscal year immediately preceding the effective date of
consolidation. If the State Board approves the consolidation funding request, a grant



shall be awarded for each of the two fiscal years following the fiscal year in which the 
filing is made. 
(b) The State Board's approval of requests for System consolidation funds under
Education Code Section 19851 shall be based on its determination that the
consolidation provides a more effective way of carrying out the purposes of the Act than
would be the case if the consolidation did not occur.
(c) For purposes of determining the eligibility of the consolidating systems to receive
funds under other provisions of the Act, a A system consolidation approved by the State
Board will be considered effective beginning July 1 of the fiscal year immediately
following the fiscal year in which the consolidation authorizations are filed.

Authority: Section 18724, Education Code. Reference: Section 18724 and 18726c, 
Education Code. 

§ 20190. Public Library Affiliation with an Existing System.
(a) If any jurisdiction, not previously a member of any System, joins a System with
borders contiguous to the jurisdiction, and the System wishes to receive an affiliation
grant under Education Code Section 18752, the administrative body of the System shall
file a notice of intent and the jurisdictional governing body of the affiliating library shall
file an affiliation authorization with the State Board.
(c) For purposes of determining the eligibility of the affiliating public library or system to
receive funds under other provisions of the Act, aAn affiliation will be considered
effective beginning July 1 of the fiscal year immediately following the fiscal year in which
the affiliation authorization is filed.

Authority: Section 18724, Education Code. Reference: Section 18724 and 18726c, 
Education Code. 

ARTICLE 6. DIRECT LOAN 

§ 20203. Residency.
For purposes of this Article, each resident of the State shall be deemed to have a single
legal residency, which shall entitle him/her them to resident library services of the
jurisdiction in which he/she they resides, and such services shall not be reimbursable
under this Article. In determining the places of residency, the following rules as
excepted from Government Code section 244 shall be observed:
(a) It is the place where one remains when not called elsewhere for labor or other
special or temporary purpose, and to which he or she one returns in seasons of repose.
(b) There can be only one residence.
(c) A residence cannot be lost until another is gained.
(d) The residence of the parent with whom an unmarried minor child maintains his or
her their place of abode is the residence of such unmarried minor child.
(e) A married person shall have the right to retain his or her their legal residence in the
State notwithstanding the legal residence or domicile of his or her their spouse.



Authority: Section 18724, Education Code. Reference: Section 18702, 18710(e), 18724, 
and 18731, Education Code. 

§ 20205. Non-Resident Borrower Eligibility.
(a) Hold a valid borrowers card issued by his/her their home library, or

Authority: Section 18724, Education Code. Reference: Section 18702, 18710(e), 18724, 
and 18731, Education Code. 

§ 20215. Reimbursement for Net Direct Loans.
Loan of a library material of any type by a participating public library to an eligible
nonresident borrower shall result in reimbursement from the state under Education
Code Sections 18731 and 18743 to the extent that the number of such loans exceeds
the number of items borrowed by that library jurisdiction's residents from other
participating public libraries, during a specific reporting period.

Authority: Section 18724, Education Code. Reference: Section 18731 (repealed 2016) 
and 18743 (repealed 2016), Education Code 

§ 20216. Reporting Requirements.
To obtain reimbursement, participating public libraries shall provide reports in the form
and manner, and for the period required. Reports must be submitted by established
deadlines. Records in support of claims for state funds must be maintained for four
years.

Authority: Section 18724, Education Code. Reference: Section 18731 (repealed 2016) 
and 18743 (repealed 2016), Education Code 

§ 20217. Reimbursable Costs.
Reimbursable costs, expressed on a unit basis, are those handling costs incurred by the
lending library in processing a direct loan to a non-resident. The State Board shall
periodically review, at least once a year, and approve such cost data, but the
reimbursement rate, as adopted, shall be uniform statewide.

Authority: Section 18724, Education Code. Reference: Section 18731 (repealed 2016) 
and 18743 (repealed 2016), Education Code 

ARTICLE 7. COMMUNICATION AND DELIVERY 

§ 20235. Definition of Reporting Terms.
In complying with the reporting requirements of Section 20135 each system shall report
the following items using the following definitions with respect to the communication,
and delivery, and resource sharing programs:
(b) “Item delivered” means the physical removal of a discrete item from one library to
another by means of a delivery van, U.S. Mail, courier service, or other delivery system
or the delivery of digital materials. Reasonable judgement shall be exercised in



determining particular “items” status (e.g., a carton containing 10,000 brochures is one -
not 10,000 items). 
(d) “Other” means that when a system employs communications, or delivery methods,
or shared resources, other than those specifically cited on the standard reporting forms,
the system must specify the method(s) employed and separately account for the
message or delivery volume for each such method. The System must describe the
communication, delivery method, or shared resource and the outcome of providing it.

Authority: Section 18724, Education Code. Reference: 18724(d) and 18745, Education 
Code. 

§20236. Inclusion
Unless otherwise prohibited by Education Codes 18745-18746, intra-system
communication, delivery and resource sharing includes the acquisition or maintenance
of technology or digital transmission products required to locate, create, or make
accessible digital, virtual, or electronic material, which may also include
telecommunication equipment and its installation along with service fees.

Authority: Section 18724, Education Code. Reference: 18724, 18745 and 18746, 
Education Code. 

ARTICLE 8. INTERLIBRARY LOANS 

§ 20251. Scope.
The regulations in this article refer to interlibrary loan activity covered under the
provisions of Education Code section 18744 (i.e. System interlibrary loan) and 18765
(i.e. Statewide loan).

Authority: Section 18724, Education Code. Reference: 18765 (repealed 2016), 
Education Code. 

§ 20252. Intent.
It is the intent of this program of the Act to support the sharing of library resources
through interlibrary loan. Library materials needed by a library user and not available in
that user's library will be made available to the user via interlibrary loan.

Authority: Section 18724, Education Code. Reference: 18765 (repealed 2016), 
Education Code. 

§ 20255. Eligibility.
(a) Public Libraries. Any public library as defined in Education Code section 18710(lj),
which has been authorized by its jurisdiction to participate in programs of the Act must
participate in the interlibrary loan programs of the Act.
(b) Libraries Other Than Public Libraries. To be eligible to participate these libraries
must be authorized by their own administrative authorities to do so and must file the
proper notice with the State Board as outlined in section 20105(c). Further, a library,
other than a public library, may be eligible for a reimbursement only for a loan to an



eligible public library. Libraries, other than public libraries, which can become eligible for 
participation in the interlibrary loan reimbursement programs of the Act include only the 
following: 
(1) Libraries operated by public schools or school districts. These libraries include only
those defined in Education Code section 18710(m).
(2) Libraries operated by public colleges or universities. These include those academic
libraries (Education Code section 18710(a)) which are funded primarily with public
funds. Academic libraries potentially eligible for these programs include the libraries of
the University of California, of the State University and College System, and of the
California Community Colleges.
(3) Libraries operated by public agencies for institutionalized persons. Libraries for the
institutionalized include hospital, correctional, and residential treatment facility libraries
which are funded primarily with public funds (i.e. local, state, or federal tax monies).
(4) Libraries operated by nonprofit private educational or research institutions. These
libraries include those operated by private colleges and universities which maintain
nonprofit status under provisions of the federal Internal Revenue Service or the
California Franchise Tax laws. These libraries also include those operated by private
companies which are primarily devoted to educational or research purposes and which
maintain nonprofit status under provisions of the federal Internal Revenue Service or the
California Franchise Tax laws. Such libraries may be required by the State Board to
furnish proof of their nonprofit status in addition to any other required notices and forms.

Authority: Section 18724, Education Code. Reference: 18765 (repealed 2016), 
Education Code. 

§ 20257. Reimbursable Transaction.
An interlibrary transaction can result in reimbursement under Education Code sections
18744 and 18765 if it consists of the loan of a library material of any type which is
collected by a library or if it consists of the provision of a copy in lieu of loan of a library
material, from any eligible, participating lending library to any eligible public library as
defined in section 20255 and in Education Code sections 18744 and 18765.

Authority: Section 18724, Education Code. Reference: 18765 (repealed 2016), 
Education Code. 

§ 20260. Reimbursable Costs.
Reimbursable costs are only those handling costs which a lending library incurs in filling
a successfully completed interlibrary loan transaction. The State Board shall
periodically, and at least annually, review and approve the cost data and determine an
appropriate funding formula which shall be uniform statewide.

Authority: Section 18724, Education Code. Reference: 18765 (repealed 2016), 
Education Code. 



§ 20265. Participation Requirements.
Participating libraries, both public and nonpublic, shall conform to the following
requirements:
(a) Reporting. To obtain reimbursement a library shall provide by the deadline reporting
date, all required reports of its interlibrary loan transactions in an established form and
manner determined by the Board for the period required.
(b) Audit. For audit purposes, a record of the interlibrary loan transactions must be
maintained for four years.
(c) Fees. A library providing an item for interlibrary loan may not collect a handling fee
on a transaction for which that library claims an interlibrary loan reimbursement under
provisions of this article. A photocopy fee, exclusive of photocopy handling charge, may
be collected.
(d) Direct Loan Availability. Participating libraries shall make maximum use of available
bibliographic access tools to refer users to borrow directly from nearby libraries where
requested material is easily available, rather than to process an interlibrary loan.
(e) Responsibility for Borrowed Materials. The borrowing library shall be responsible for
all items it borrows, and if such item is lost or damaged by the library or its users, the
borrowing library may be required by the lending library to make restitution for the item.
(f) Adherence to Standards. All participating libraries shall attempt to follow the
standards described in the “California Library Services Act Interlibrary Loan Standards,”
which is hereby incorporated by reference. The State Board may withhold
reimbursements to libraries which continually fail to meet the standards of performance.

Authority: Section 18724, Education Code. Reference: 18765 (repealed 2016), 
Education Code. 



Initial Statement of Reasons 

PROBLEM STATEMENT 

The Legislature adopted, as part of the 2016-17 fiscal year budget package, AB 1602 
which amended the California Library Services Act (Education Code 18700-18767). The 
purpose of the California Library Services Act is to facilitate equal access to library 
resources regardless of location, income, or education level especially to underserved 
communities. In an effort to achieve this end funds are made available to libraries or 
localized library cooperative systems, under the Act, for various programs.  

The Education Code sections 18700-18767 were originally enacted in 1977 and, due to 
the time period in which they were put in place; focus on creating equal access through 
the physical sharing of books and other physical resources. The amendments to 
Sections 18700-18767 removed references to obsolete programs which have not been 
funded by the legislature for several years. They also amended the statute to include 
modernizing language which references the sharing of electronic resources in addition 
to print materials.  

While the new section 18700-18767 allow for the sharing of electronic resources there 
is no definition of sharing provided. There are also usually additional costs that coincide 
with electronic resources such as supporting technology or subscription fees but it is 
unclear in the statute whether these are acceptable costs for funding allocated under 
that section. Finally, electronic materials were included under the new language in the 
California Library Services Act as materials that can be shared. The reporting 
requirements that allow the California Library Services Act’s governing body, the 
California Library Services Board, to assess if funds are being used effectively are 
contained in regulation so reporting on the use and sharing of electronic resources is 
not currently required. This limits the ability of the California Library Services Board to 
assess how these resources are being used. 

BENEFITS 

The impact of the amendments to regulatory sections 20100-20265 will be to clean-up 
the regulatory language and remove obsolete provisions that are no longer supported 
by state funds or statute. It will also allow for the amendment of procedural language 
relating to meeting notifications and meeting requirements. These regulatory sections 
were put in place prior to the enactment of the Bagley-Keene Open Meeting Act 
(Government Code sections 11120-11131) and while the Board does comply with 
newer open meeting requirements the language in the regulations does not and can be 
confusing to interested parties.  



Electronic resources allow patrons easier, more convenient access to information and 
there is a demand, among library patrons for both print and digital materials. Allowing 
the funding of technology, digital products, equipment, and service fees to support 
digital resources will expand the number of products and programs the Cooperative 
Library Systems can provide to their member libraries as well as increasing the 
availability of the information and services provided by those products to a larger 
number of patrons both within the libraries’ service area and beyond.  

PURPOSE  

Section 20101, subdivision (b) and Section 20105, subdivision (b): To regulate the 
basic requirements for participation and specify information that shall be provided by 
participating libraries and notification requirements.  

Section 20107: To define terms not already defined in statute for the purposes of the 
regulatory section. 

Sections 20116, 20118, 20119, 20122, 20123, 20124, 20125, 20127, 20130, 20134: 
To specify procedures for the governance and meetings of the California Library 
Services Board to ensure business is carried out in an organized, timely, transparent 
manner with ample opportunity for public participation.  

Section 20135: To identify the requirements for public library cooperative system 
reports to the California Library Services Board to allow for the assessment of their use 
of funds and the collect information to assist in the allocation of funds.  

Sections 20136, 20140: To provide guidelines for the governance of Cooperative 
Library Systems. 

Section 20158: To identify how funding would be allocated under the now repealed 
system reference programs. 

Sections 20180, and 20185: To provide defined procedures for consolidations of public 
library jurisdictions and Cooperative Library Systems that ensure each consolidation is 
reviewed and furthers the purpose of the California Library Services Act.  

Section 20190: To provide defined procedures for the joining of a public library 
jurisdiction with a Cooperative Library System that ensures both participating parties are 
willing to affiliate and that the public library jurisdiction’s affiliation with the Cooperative 
Library Systems furthers the purpose of the California Library Services Act.  

Sections 20203 and 20205: To establish guidelines for residence and eligibility for 
library cards and services. 



Sections 20215, 20216, 20217: To establish guidelines for reimbursement under the 
repealed direct loan program and requirements for reporting a libraries qualified loans. 

Section 20235, subdivion (b) and subdivision (d): To define information the 
Cooperative Library Systems have to report in their annual reporting to the State 
Library. 

Section 20236: To clarify how communication, delivery, and resource sharing money 
can be spent. 

Sections 20251, 20252, 20255, 20257. 20260, 20265: To create guidelines and 
procedures for the governance and funding of the now repealed Interlibrary Loan 
program.   

NECESSITY 

Section 20101 and 20105: Amending these sections is necessary to reflect changes 
made to statute in 2016. These amendments will ensure that each regulatory section is 
referencing the intended statute section. 

Section 20107, subdivision (a): Amending this section is necessary to ensure the 
section is referring to the most updated Statute rather than the original version since the 
statutory definitions have changed over time.  

Section 20107, subdivision (b): Amending the definitions in this section is necessary 
to reflect current practices and removed obsolete language referencing definitions 
already present in statute, repealed programs, and removed positions.  

In the 2016 amendment to Education Code section 18745 was amended to include 
“resource sharing” in the allowed items cooperative library systems can fund. The 
section also indicates that cooperative library systems base funding proposals on “the 
more cost-effective methods of exchanging print and digital materials and information…”  
Digital materials are not always owned outright like print materials. Instead a library 
might lease, or pay for access to digital materials. In addition to the variety of way 
libraries can obtain materials, the financial resources to support these communication, 
delivery and resource sharing activities are limited. 

A definition new of “Resource sharing” is necessary to ensure that funds are used to 
further the statutory requirement of exchanging print and digital materials while ensure 
that libraries have the freedom to share those resources regardless of format or how the 
content was obtained by the library. The definition is also necessary to encourage 
libraries to spread the limited resources further ensuring that at least three libraries find 
value in and agree to share a resource before it can be funded.  



Section 20116: The California Library Services Board, due to budget cuts and 
reductions in funding, meets twice each year to conduct its business. Due to the 
regulatory requirement that Board officers be elected every year time is spent at each 
meetings either electing a nominating committee or voting on Board officers. Amending 
this section to allow for biennial Board elections will save limited time that the Board has 
since elections would only be addressed every other year and allow that time to be 
allocated to the discussion of more pressing topics. Additionally, the Board officers 
would have more time to adjust to and become comfortable in their roll since they 
currently are only serving as officers for one meeting before new elections are held.  

Section 20118: Amending the meeting notice requirements in this section is necessary 
because they no longer align with Bagley-Keene Open Meeting Act requirements with 
which California Library Services Board meetings are required to comply. Referencing 
the Bagley-Keene Open Meeting Act statutes will ensure that all meeting notices comply 
with the open meeting act regardless of changes made to open meeting rules in the 
future.  

Additionally, these regulations were put in place prior to the prevalence of email in 
correspondence. Amending the language to allow notice requests to be submitted by 
email will align with current practices and allow notice requests to be made much closer 
to posting deadlines and meetings since those requesting notification will not have to 
account for physical mail timelines or the cost of placing such a request. 

Finally, prior to 2010 it was necessary for the California Library Services Board to meet 
several times a year to effectively administrate the funds and programs that fell under 
the Board’s purview. In 2010 the funding for the California Library services Act was 
zeroed out and only a small portion of those funds, allocated to a single program have 
been restored. The Board no longer needs to meet bi monthly. Amending the regulatory 
language to indicate that the Board should meet at least once year aligns more with the 
current practice of meeting twice yearly to address the business of the Board while still 
allowing leeway for the Board to meet more often if necessary.  

Section 20119: This section is no longer necessary as meeting of the Board are 
governed by the Bagley-Keene Open Meeting Act (Government Code sections 11120-
11131) which details the notice requirements and is referenced as the governing stature 
in Section 20118. 

Sections 20122, 20123, 20124, 20125 and 20126, 20130, and 20134: Changes to 
these sections are necessary to conform language to recommendations for additional 
regulatory changes we are requesting at this time, update contact information and 
modernize practices by allowing email submissions and communication, and conform 



timeframes for notifications and submissions to notice requirement timelines in the 
Bagley-Keene Open Meeting Act (Government Code sections 11120-11131).  

Sections 20135: The funding the Cooperative Library Systems receive from through 
the California Library Services Act is allocated by formula that is based on library 
distances and service populations. In order to effectively allocate these funds the Board 
has to review and understand the population and system membership figures. The only 
mention of this requirement was contained in a regulatory article which was tied to a 
statutory program that has been repealed. It is necessary to retain the regulatory 
language regarding the review of population figures as well as the ability fo the Board 
determine a uniform funding formula should the existing formula need to be revisited 
due to changes in populations or library services. Since the Cooperative Library 
Systems budget is based on funding it received through the formula the requirement for 
the California Library Services Board to review the population figures was placed in this 
section. 

Additionally amendments to the section are necessary to reflect current practices based 
on the ability of the Cooperative library Systems to gather and provide information.  

Sections 20136 and 20140: Minor amendments to these sections are necessary to 
ensure that the regulation language is reference current statutes. 

Section 20158: This section references a program authorized under Education Code 
section 18741. This code section was repealed. Language contained in this section that 
is needed to regulate other, continuing programs under the California Library Services 
Act was moved to section 20135. This section is unnecessary and no longer has a 
statutory basis so it should be repealed to clean-up the regulations and prevent 
confusion for library jurisdictions or cooperative library systems reading the regulations. 

Section 20180, 20185, 20190: The regulatory language removed in each of these 
sections references grant programs that are no longer funded and whose authorizing 
statutory language has been repealed. Removing the irrelevant language is necessary 
to clean-up the regulations and prevent confusion for library jurisdictions or cooperative 
library systems reading the regulations.  

Sections 20203, 20205, 20215, 20216, 20217: The regulatory language removed in 
each of these sections references a reimbursement program that is no longer funded 
and whose authorizing statutory language has been repealed. Removing the irrelevant 
language is necessary to clean-up the regulations and prevent confusion for library 
jurisdictions or cooperative library systems reading the regulations. 

Section 20235: Changes to this section are necessary to reflect changes to Education 
Code 18745 which modernized the language to reference the funding of resource 



sharing and digital materials. Currently Cooperative Library Systems are required to 
report to the Board on programs and services they are funding under section 18745. 
This section defines items that are required to be reported and these changes would 
ensure that they are also reporting on digital materials and shared resources being 
funded. This kind of information is necessary for the Board to be able to assess if funds 
are being used in the most effective, beneficial manner.  

Section 20236: Access to digital materials allows library patrons easier and more 
convenient access to information and resources.  The cost of digital materials extends 
beyond the lease of, subscription to, or purchase of these materials. Libraries often 
have to purchase new technologies or servers to support these programs in addition to 
ongoing monthly, quarterly or yearly costs. Additionally, many libraries have unique 
physical collections that could be valuable to patrons in other areas but are not easily 
accessible. Libraries are contemplating ways to provide increased access to these kinds 
of materials and collections.  Digitization is a good option for preserving and expanding 
access to these materials; however it is expensive due to the cost of scanning 
equipment, software, server space to store files, and platforms to share the materials  

Amendments to Education Code section 18745 allows for the funding of resource 
sharing and digital materials but does not mention supporting technologies, service fees 
for digital materials, or technology or products for creating or accessing digital material 
to share.  Providing language that clarifies that there expenses are acceptable as long 
as they comply with the statute will allow libraries to explore a larger variety of products 
and services that might expand access to information and benefit their patrons and the 
people of California.  

Sections 20251, 20252, 20255, 20257, 20260, and 20265: Removing each of these 
sections will clean-up the regulations and prevent confusion for library jurisdictions or 
cooperative library systems reading the regulations. These sections reference a 
reimbursement program that is no longer funded and whose authorizing statutory 
language has been repealed.  

BASIS FOR REGULATORY CHANGES AND ADDITIONS 

Three major factors were considered in the recommended changes and additions to 
these regulation sections. The first was changes to statutes impacting these regulations 
including Education code sections governing the California Library Services Act as well 
as Government Code open meeting act requirements. The seconds was recommended 
changes put forward by members of the California Library Services Board that were felt 
to streamline processes and save on limited time and funds. Finally, input provided by 
the Cooperative Library Systems in the form of letters to the Board as well as 
conference calls between State Library staff and the Cooperative Library System 



coordinators. The recommendations from the Cooperative Library Systems centered on 
seeking ability to more effectively serve library patrons using technology that has 
become prevalent since the regulations were enacted.  

The formal recommendations from the Cooperative Library Systems and comments by 
Board members and members of the public on this issue can be found on the California 
State Library’s website in the April 2017 Agenda Packet, agenda item D. 
(http://www.library.ca.gov/loc/docs/2017-04_Agenda_packet.pdf).   

ECONOMIC IMPACT ASSESSMENT/ANALYSYS 

The proposed amendments to regulatory sections 20101-20265, which implement the 
California Library Services Act (Education Code 18700-18767), will remove obsolete 
references to unfunded programs no longer supported by statute, update California 
Library Services Board procedures to reflect current Bagley-Keene Open Meeting Act 
requirements and current Board procedures, and update remaining program language 
to mirror changes to statute and clarify allowable costs. 

The changes to these regulations are technical and clarifying in nature. They have no 
impact on the amount of funding designated by the legislature or how those funds are 
distributed to public libraries.  

Creation or Elimination of Jobs within the State of California 

The proposed amendments to these regulations will update and clarify the existing 
regulations already in place governing the processes of the California Library Services 
Board and the implementation of the programs they oversee. The program related 
language that is being removed references programs that have not been funded since 
2010 at the latest (some programs lacked designated funding almost since 
implementation). Since the programs have not had funding for the last seven years 
there are no staff members at the State Library, the Cooperative Library Systems, or 
public libraries working specifically with those programs so the changes will not result in 
any job loss. 

The funding still received under the California Library Services Act is allocated to the 
Cooperative Library Systems in California to fund and create library services related to 
communication, delivery, and resource sharing of information, and print and digital 
materials. The proposed language changes related to this remaining program aligns 
with and clarifies the allowable program costs based on 2016 changes to statute. While 
this change does reflect a slight expansion of how program funds can be spent, the new 
program language does not coincide with any additional funding and so would not 
create new jobs. The updated language allows those already working on the services 
provided under this program more options for services and activities.  



Additionally, the staff members assigned to the California Library Services Board 
already comply with the open meeting requirements and processes, since they are 
required by statute, so conforming the regulations to reflect those requirements will not 
result in any new Board staff. 

Creation of new or elimination of existing business in the State of California 

The California Library Services Act regulations govern the process of the California 
Library Services Board and the implementation of the programs they oversee. The 
funding provided for California Library Services Act programs are for the benefit of 
Public Libraries in California. While the services are beneficial, the funds received are a 
very small portion of a public library’s budget and would not allow for the formation of a 
new library or library district, especially when it is considered that the funds are divided 
for the benefit of all 182 public library jurisdictions in California. 

Funds allocated to the communication, delivery, and resource sharing program are 
sometimes used to contract with existing information resources related businesses and 
database providers. Based on the Plans of Service and Annual Reports from the 
Cooperative Library Systems detailing what services are being funded, libraries are 
contracting with the larger, well known information and database providers. The 
existence of such contracting opportunities would not inspire the creation of new 
businesses based on both the preference for known, tested products, and the limited 
amount of funding actually available once divided amongst the Cooperative Library 
Systems and allocated toward the variety of communication, delivery, and resource 
sharing services being provided.  

There is some opportunity for Cooperative Library Systems to expand their service 
offerings based on the recent statute changes and proposed regulatory amendments. 
However, even if some Cooperative Library Systems choose to allocate funds to 
different services because of those changes, the amount of overall funding allocated to 
each service is not significant. Therefore no existing businesses in California would be 
materially hurt based on those changes.  

The expansion of businesses currently doing business within the State of California 

The California Library Services Act regulations govern the process of the California 
Library Services Board and the implementation of the programs they oversee. Funds 
allocated to the remaining library program (communication, delivery, and resource 
sharing) are used to contract with existing information resources related businesses and 
the changes to the regulations can allow for expanded program options. However, even 
if some Cooperative Library Systems choose to allocate funds to different services 
because of those changes, the amount of overall funding is so small that it would not 
allow for business expansion. 



Benefits of the Regulations to the health and welfare of California residents, worker 
safety, and the State’s environment 

The California Library Services Act regulations govern the process of the California 
Library Services Board and the implementation of the programs they oversee. The 
proposed amendments simply clean-up the existing regulatory language, conform to 
changes in statute, and clarify allowable program costs. The amendments could have a 
slight benefit to the welfare of those California residents who use and benefit from 
expanded services but there is no guarantee that services will change or who and how 
many patrons will use the service if there is a change as the kinds of services that can 
be provided must still fit within “communication, delivery and resource sharing”. These 
regulations are specific to certain library services and have no impact on California 
resident health, worker safety, or the environment.  

EVIDENCE SUPPORTING NO ADVERSE ECONOMIC IMPACT 

These regulatory changes are amendments to existing California Library Services Act 
regulations governing the process of the California Library Services Board and the 
implementation of the programs they oversee. During the process of drafting the 
amendments California State Library staff analyzing the current regulatory language as 
well as looking at the changes to the Education code sections 18700-18767 (enacted by 
AB 1602, 2016 Statutes), and the requirements of the Bagley-Keen Open Meeting 
statutes (Government Code sections 11120-11131).  

The California State Library solicited input from the California Cooperative Library 
Systems (Systems) on how the changes were perceived and the potential impacts. The 
State Library held a stakeholder meeting with representatives from the Systems to 
discuss the language changes and provided advanced opportunities for members of the 
public and the library community to express their opinion of the perceived impact of the 
regulatory amendments on the Systems and the public library community.  

These discussions did lead to one change within the State Library’s original draft 
language being discarded due to a widespread belief by the library community that it 
would have an adverse economic impact on the Cooperative Library Systems and 
public libraries in California, specifically the smaller and more economically 
disadvantaged library districts. The library community in California saw no economic 
impacts from the rest of the language changes with a chance of positive programmatic 
impacts from the clarified requirements.  

State Library staff also analyzed past Plans of Service and Annual Reports for the 
California Library Cooperative Systems which detail the over-all budgets, what 
programs are being provided, and how much is being spent on each program. This 
analysis was done to determine, realistically, how much was being allocated toward 



contracts with individual companies and how likely it was that a change in contract 
would have an adverse impact on the companies involved.  

The overall funding for the California Library Services Act is $3.63 million allocated to 
the communication, delivery, and resource sharing program. These funds are divided up 
amongst the nine Cooperative Library Systems (Systems) based on the distances 
between the libraries in their service area and the populations they serve. The amounts 
received by the Systems range from around $150,000 to almost $820,000. On average 
20% of the funds received by a system are used for internal administrative costs.  

Most of the Systems use at least some of the money to finance the physical delivery of 
materials between System member libraries through the use of vans or payment for 
shipping costs. These delivery amounts can vary from 80% of the overall funding the 
System receives to 10%. An analysis of the services being provided shows that each 
System is providing between two and nine separate services based on the size of the 
System and how much money it receives, including internal library programs like digital 
labs being shared among the libraries belonging to that System or subscriptions for 
eBooks for all the libraries in the System.  

The services that would require contracting with outside businesses are the provision of 
eBook collections. These collections are provided by contracting with eBook publishers 
and providers such as Overdrive, Zinio, and Hoopla.  An analysis of the Cooperative 
Library Systems’ reports showed that all of the providers they are contracting with are 
large, well established companies that provide services to libraries, schools, and other 
organizations around California and in some cases nation and worldwide. The 
companies that the Cooperative library systems are working with have enough business 
to make it unlikely that they are dependent on any of the Cooperative Library Systems 
contracts to maintain their business. Especially considering the small amount of funding 
the Cooperative Library Systems actually have available for these contracts based on 
overall allocations, subtraction of administrative costs, expenditure of funds on physical 
delivery, and the division of remaining funds over several services and programs.  

Based on this information the California State Library determined that, even if expansion 
of program language in the regulations did lead to changes in the kinds of services 
libraries were contracting for, it would not have a significant adverse economic impact 
on businesses in California.  







March 22

Anne R. B
California
California
P.O. Box 
Sacrame

Dear Ms.

On behal
the prop
the Califo

First of a
public lib
allowing 
libraries 
California

When re
commen

Article 2,

We unde
would lik
probably
insure th
struggled
current C
meet.  Th
serve the
meet sev

 Article 2

2, 2018 

Bernardo, Pr
a Library Ser
a State Libra
942837 
nto, CA 9423

. Bernardo, 

lf of the Nor
osed update
ornia Library

ll, on behalf
braries here 
libraries to s
might other
a. 

viewing the 
t on. 

, Section 20

erstand the n
ke to express
y the intent o
he work of th
d to meet CL
CLSB meetin
his is especia
e libraries an
veral times p

2, Section 20

resident 
rvices Board
ary 

37 

rthNet Librar
es to the Reg
y Services Bo

f of NLS, than
in California
serve their c
rwise struggl

upcoming c

118, Regula

need to upd
s our wish th
of the board
he consortiu
LSB deadline
gs.  Once pe
ally importan
nd communi
per year then

0125. Speake

 

ry System (N
gulations Im
oard. 

nk you for al
a.  Updating t
communities
le to afford. 

changes ther

r Meetings. 

ate the curr
hat the CLSB
 to do so bu
ms can mov
es due to sta
er year minim
nt for us wh
ties in North
n the regulat

ers. 

NLS), please 
plementing 

ll the work t
the CLSA reg
s better and 
This will hel

re are a coup

ent schedule
B meet at lea
ut making su
ve along wel
te time lines
mum would 
en deciding 
hNet.  In add
tions should

accept this l
the Library 

that the boa
gulations wi
 provide the
lp most of th

ple of sectio

e since bi‐m
ast twice a y
re the board
l.  Here at N
s and infreq
make those
how to best
dition, if it is 
d so state. 

letter as pub
Services Act

rd has done
ll have a we
em with reso
he libraries h

ns that NLS 

onthly is a b
ear.  We bel
d meets at le
LS we have 
uency and a
e deadlines m
t use CLSA m
 the intent o

blic commen
t, Procedure

 on behalf o
lcome impa
ources that t
here in north

would like t

bit much but
lieve that it i
east twice w
sometimes 
lignment of 
more difficul
monies to be
of the board

nt to 
es of 

of the 
ct on 
those 
hern 

o 

t 
is 

will 

the 
lt to 
est 
 to 



The prop
may be r

Member
coordina
decisions
no explan

As menti
residents
the day‐t
input fro

California
“will” to 
word “w
and the s

Thank yo
question
attending

Mel Light
Chair, No
Butte Co

 cc:   N

posed chang
recognized b

s of the pub
tors.  This is
s made by th
nation for th

oned above
s and the lib
to‐day direct
m the field c

a embraces 
“may” appe
ill’ ensures t
spirit of the 

ou for giving 
s or comme
g the meetin

tbody 
orthNet Libra
unty Libraria

NLS Executive

e in Subsect
by the Presid

blic would inc
s the “public
he CLSB.  We
his change. 

e, the work o
raries that s
t service tha
cannot but e

transparenc
ears to be a w
transparency
Bagley‐Keen

NorthNet a
nts, you ma
ng. 

ary System 
an 

e Committee

tion (a) state
dent…’    

clude public
” group whic
e are uncerta

of the board 
erve them.  
at libraries p
enhance the

cy in its gove
way that suc
y and openn
ne Open Me

n opportuni
y email me a

e 

es “Member 

 libraries an
ch has the m
ain of the in

directly imp
We appreci
rovide to Ca
 discussion a

ernment and
ch public com
ness, and ens
etings Act.  

ty to addres
at: mlightbo

of the publi

d their repre
most interest
tent of chan

pacts service
ate the wor
alifornia com
and decision

d welcomes 
mment may 
sures compl

ss our conce
ody@butteco

ic or the Stat

esentatives 
t in and imp
nging will to 

es to Californ
k of the boa

mmunities an
n‐making of 

public input
be blocked.
iance with b

rns.  If you h
ounty.net.  I

te Library st

and system 
act from 
may and the

nia state 
ard in suppor
nd believe th
the board.   

.  Changing 
.  Keeping th
both the lett

have specific
 do plan on 

aff 

ere is 

rting 
hat 

he 
ter 

c 



March 24, 2018 

Ann Bernardo 
California Library Services Board 
California State Library 
P.O. Box 942837 
Sacramento, CA 94237 

Dear Ms. Bernardo, 

Please accept this letter as public comment to the proposed updates to the Regulations 
Implementing the Library Services Act, Procedures of the California Library Services Board. 

As the President of the Pacific Library Partnership (PLP), I would like to express PLP’s 
appreciation of the efforts which have been undertaken by the California State Library as well 
as the California Library Services Board (CLSB) to consider updating regulatory California Library 
Services Act language to reflect current as well as future needs of our public libraries.  PLP 
would like to provide comments on two sections.  

Article 2, Section 20118, Regular Meetings.  
We agree with the elimination of the language for the CLSB to meet at least bi-monthly.  We 
also appreciate that the qualified ‘at least’ has been included in the ‘at least once each year.’ In 
the spirit of collaboration and ensuring that the business of the libraries is being addressed, we 
respectfully request that the CLSB consider increasing this to at least twice a year. The CLSB 
carries out important work, including the approval of the CLSA Plans of Service, the allocation of 
funds, the certification of population figures, the approval of libraries to move from one system 
to another, as well as many other important tasks.  Although the spirit of the phrase infers that 
the Board could meet more than once a year, the proposed wording would allow a precedent 
for the Board to be able to meet just once a year. This would have severe impacts on the ability 
for libraries to perform their functions. For instance, for libraries wishing to form, or to move 
from one cooperative library system to another, with the Board currently meeting twice a year, 
the library must wait for a Board meeting to be scheduled.  Should that be potentially reduced 
to once a year, that library may miss out on CLSA funds for an entire year. Another example is 
the certification of population. At least one cooperative library system uses these certified 
numbers to determine the CLSA allocation between member libraries. Delaying certification 
could cause delays in funds being allocated to libraries. We respectfully request that the CLSB 
entertain modifying the proposed regulatory language to ‘at least twice each year.’   

 Article 2, Section 20125. Speakers. 
The proposed change in Subsection (a) states “Member of the public or the State Library staff 
may be recognized by the President…’ We would respectfully request that the CLSB not change 
the word ‘will’ to ‘may.’  The CLSB Mission Statement includes the following: “Public  



Participation – We value and ensure public participation in carrying out the intent of the 
California Library Services Act through locally appointed System Advisory Boards, open public 
meetings, and involvement of voluntary groups.”  The value of public participation can be found 
in all public libraries’ meetings, where public comment is encouraged.  We would like the CLSB 
to also ensure that all comments will be heard. Changing the language could open the 
possibility to imply bias or blocking of comments.  Keeping the word “will’ ensures transparency 
and openness, and ensures compliance with both the letter and the spirit of the Bagley-Keene 
Open Meetings Act.  

We appreciate the consideration of this letter by the State Library staff as well as the CLSB. 
Should you need additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me at 
hmurphy@cityofpleasantonca.gov. 

Sincerely, 

Heidi Murphy 
President, Pacific Library Partnership 
Library Director, Library Services Department, Pleasanton 

 cc: Pacific Library Partnership Executive Committee 



��������� ��		
���
�
�����
����	
����������
����������
�� 	��
	� �����!�
�����
�������	"
#$%&'
($)#* #+%,-
./012
3/45678579
:;7170;73*
<=>2;0
2;>616;5?*
4/956
1<<6/412@ABCDEFBCDGH
 IJKLMKM

NL

OKLIPK

JIQRS
CTU
BCDE

 VWXYZ[\]YW
X̂_ỲXWab\̂ c
defghdefi
\̂ _bXW\
̀^̀ Ỳ[]
#'j%('
+kj#()(l()kj%.%m'jnm'j( j/@
-
 )796/o=05o
>p
#5719/6
n/oo
q+/1=9r/6?*
#5719/6?
m0s=;65
tuvvw
xyz{u|}w
17o
~;50�/�?�;�

�17=16p
-��
����
I
����������
��
�������
��
���
������
��
���
O����
��
R���������
��
���������
��
���
R�����������
��
���O����U
��
��������
O������
D
��
I������
�NNN
I
�������U
���
��
��������
O������
DG
��
I������
��N�������U
��������
��
������
����������

 �� ¡¢�£¤¡¥�
¦§̈ ©¢��ª¢
«¡ �¢¤
ORI
¬U
��
�������U
M����
����
��®�������
���������̄
������
���������̄
®����
�����®���P��
R���������
R�����������
���������
���
��
®������
��°
����
��
����
��������
����
�°�������
D±
��
���
����
����®����
��
���
��������U
���²���
��
�������
�°��������
����
�������
�
��°
����
��
���®���
������
³́µ¶·¶������������
��������
��
�
������
��������U
���������
�������
��������U
��
������
������
��
���������
���
����������������
���
�����®��
��
̧ ±̧
��
���
®�����
��
���
��������
��
������
®�����
��
���
�����������
��
��
���������P���
�������
¹����
������
��
����������
�°�������
��
���
D±
�����
���
�
����
�������
��
�
����U
������U
����
���������U
��
�������
��������
��
���®���
������
������������
��������
��
����
������
�������
����������U
����
�������®��
��
̧ ±̧
��
���
®�����
��
���
����U
������U
����
���
������U
��
�������
��������U
��
�����������
º»»¼½¾º³¼·¿
½ÀÁÂ·
»Ã́»́Ä½Á½́µ
Å··ÁÄ
Ä»·¾½À½·¶
Ã·ÆÇ½Ã·Å·µÁÄÈP��
R���������
R�����������
���������
���������
�����
��®�������
��������
����
���������
���
�������������°�������
��
���
����
���
������
���
��®����
���®����
��
����
����U
¹������
���
������
��
BÉ¬
��
���
®�����
������²���
��
�����
�����������
N�
���
����
��
�
������
��������U
���������
�������
��������U
��
������
������
�����������U
���
R���������
R�����������
�������
�
�����������
���
���
����������
��
������������
��
���
����
���������
����������
�����
���
���
������������U
��������������U
��������������U
��
�����������
��
������
����������U���������
���
����������
���
�Ê�������
��
������
����������U
��
���
��Ê��������
��
�����
��
����
��������
���
����������������U
��
��
�������
����
���
�����®��
��
̧ ±̧
��
���
®�����
��
���
��������
��
������U
��
�����������U
®�������
���
�����������
��
��
���������

Ë��� ��		
Ì���������� ��	�������
��Í Î� 	�������! Ï�Ð��
Ñ�!�����! ÒÓ
�� !��������! ÒÓ
Ô�������!Document 9



��������� ��		
���
�
�����
����	
����������
����������
�� 	��
	� �����!�
�����
�������	"#$%&
'()&*+(
,-*./
&%'%.)+.0
.-,(+
1-
223
1$(
4-1(+5)66+-4).
1$+(&$-./
7-+
)
8%109
8-*:109
-+
8%10
):/
8-*:10
1-%:8*+
;-:/(/
%:/(;1(/:(&&9
(<8((/%:=
%:
):0
0()+
1$(
%:8-'(
):/
+(4(:*(
6+-4%/(/
%:
1$)1
0()+9
1$)1
%&
%:
1$(7-+'
-7
=(:(+).
-;.%=)1%-:
;-:/&
%&&*(/
1-
7*:/
6*;.%8
.%;+)+%(&>?-1(@
ABC


D66+-6+%)1%-:@
:-


E%&8).
F-''%11((@
:-


G-8).
H+-=+)'@
:-

I(&-.4(/
;0
1$(
J(:)1(9
1$(
D&&(';.0
8-:8*++%:=9
#$)1
1$(
G(=%&.)1*+(
-7
1$(
J1)1(
-7
F).%7-+:%)
)1
%1&
AKLMNLOI(=*.)+
J(&&%-:
8-''(:8%:=
-:
1$(
7%71$
/)0
-7
P(8(';(+
AKLQ9
1,-51$%+/&
-7
1$(
'(';(+&$%6
-7
()8$
$-*&(8-:8*++%:=9
$(+(;0
6+-6-&(&
1-
1$(
6(-6.(
-7
1$(
J1)1(
-7
F).%7-+:%)9
1$)1
1$(
F-:&1%1*1%-:
-7
1$(
J1)1(
;()'(:/(/
)&
7-..-,&@RSTUVW
#$)1
J(81%-:
L
-7
D+1%8.(
XYYY
D
1$(+(-7
%&
)'(:/(/
1-
+()/@Z[\]̂_̀ 
ab
c)d
#$(
')<%'*'
)'-*:1
-7
):0
)/
4).-+('
1)<
-:
+().
6+-6(+10
&$)..
:-1
(<8((/
L
6(+8(:1
-7
1$(7*..
8)&$
4).*(
-7
1$)1
6+-6(+10>
#$(
L
6(+8(:1
1)<
&$)..
;(
8-..(81(/
;0
1$(
8-*:1%(&
):/
)66-+1%-:(/
)88-+/%:=
1-.),
1-
1$(
/%&1+%81&
,%1$%:
1$(
8-*:1%(&>c;d
#$(
.%'%1)1%-:
6+-4%/(/
7-+
%:
&*;/%4%&%-:
c)d
&$)..
:-1
)66.0
1-
)/
4).-+('
1)<(&
-+
&6(8%).
)&&(&&'(:1&
1-6)0
1$(
%:1(+(&1
):/
+(/('61%-:
8$)+=(&
-:
):0
-7
1$(
7-..-,%:=@cLd
Y:/(;1(/:(&&
)66+-4(/
;0
1$(
4-1(+&
6+%-+
1-
e*.0
L9
LfMO>cAd
g-:/(/
%:/(;1(/:(&&
7-+
1$(
)8h*%&%1%-:
-+
%'6+-4('(:1
-7
+().
6+-6(+10
)66+-4(/
-:
-+
)71(+
e*.0
L9
LfMO9;0
1,-51$%+/&
-7
1$(
4-1(&
8)&1
;0
1$(
4-1(+&
4-1%:=
-:
1$(
6+-6-&%1%-:>cCd
g-:/(/
%:/(;1(/:(&&
%:8*++(/
;0
)
&8$--.
/%&1+%819
8-''*:%10
8-..(=(
/%&1+%819
-+
8-*:10
-77%8(
-7
(/*8)1%-:
1-7*:/
1$(
8-:&1+*81%-:9
+(8-:&1+*81%-:9
+($);%.%1)1%-:9
-+
+(6.)8('(:1
-7
&8$--.
7)8%.%1%(&9
%:8.*/%:=
1$(
7*+:%&$%:=):/
(h*%66%:=
-7
&8$--.
7)8%.%1%(&9
-+
1$(
)8h*%&%1%-:
-+
.()&(
-7
+().
6+-6(+10
7-+
&8$--.
7)8%.%1%(&9
)66+-4(/
;0
226(+8(:1
-7
1$(
4-1(+&
-7
1$(
/%&1+%81
-+
8-*:109
)&
)66+-6+%)1(9
4-1%:=
-:
1$(
6+-6-&%1%-:
-:
-+
)71(+
i-4(';(+
O9AKKK>
#$%&
6)+)=+)6$
&$)..
)66.0
-:.0
%7
1$(
6+-6-&%1%-:
)66+-4(/
;0
1$(
4-1(+&
):/
+(&*.1%:=
%:
1$(
;-:/(/%:/(;1(/:(&&
%:8.*/(&
)..
-7
1$(
7-..-,%:=
)88-*:1);%.%10
+(h*%+('(:1&@cDd
D
+(h*%+('(:1
1$)1
1$(
6+-8((/&
7+-'
1$(
&).(
-7
1$(
;-:/&
;(
*&(/
-:.0
7-+
1$(
6*+6-&(&
&6(8%7%(/
%:
1$%&6)+)=+)6$
):/
:-1
7-+
):0
-1$(+
6*+6-&(9
%:8.*/%:=
1()8$(+
):/
)/'%:%&1+)1-+
&).)+%(&
):/
-1$(+
&8$--.
-6(+)1%:=(<6(:&(&>cgd
D
.%&1
-7
1$(
&6(8%7%8
&8$--.
7)8%.%1%(&
6+-j(81&
1-
;(
7*:/(/
):/
8(+1%7%8)1%-:
1$)1
1$(
&8$--.
/%&1+%81
;-)+/98-''*:%10
8-..(=(
;-)+/9
-+
8-*:10
-77%8(
-7
(/*8)1%-:
$)&
(4).*)1(/
&)7(109
8.)&&
&%k(
+(/*81%-:9
):/%:7-+')1%-:
1(8$:-.-=0
:((/&
%:
/(4(.-6%:=
1$)1
.%&1>cFd
D
+(h*%+('(:1
1$)1
1$(
&8$--.
/%&1+%81
;-)+/9
8-''*:%10
8-..(=(
;-)+/9
-+
8-*:10
-77%8(
-7
(/*8)1%-:
8-:/*81):
)::*).9
%:/(6(:/(:1
6(+7-+'):8(
)*/%1
1-
(:&*+(
1$)1
1$(
7*:/&
$)4(
;((:
(<6(:/(/
-:.0
-:
1$(
&6(8%7%86+-j(81&
.%&1(/>cPd
D
+(h*%+('(:1
1$)1
1$(
&8$--.
/%&1+%81
;-)+/9
8-''*:%10
8-..(=(
;-)+/9
-+
8-*:10
-77%8(
-7
(/*8)1%-:
8-:/*81):
)::*).9
%:/(6(:/(:1
7%:):8%).
)*/%1
-7
1$(
6+-8((/&
7+-'
1$(
&).(
-7
1$(
;-:/&
*:1%.
)..
-7
1$-&(
6+-8((/&
$)4(;((:
(<6(:/(/
7-+
1$(
&8$--.
7)8%.%1%(&
6+-j(81&>cld
mno
g-:/(/
%:/(;1(/:(&&9
)66+-4(/
;0
22
6(+8(:1
-7
1$(
4-1(+&
-7
)
8%109
8-*:109
8%10
):/
8-*:109
-+
&6(8%)./%&1+%819
)&
)66.%8);.(9
4-1%:=
-:
1$(
6+-6-&%1%-:
-:
-+
)71(+
1$(
(77(81%4(
/)1(
-7
1$(
'()&*+(
)//%:=
1$%&6)+)=+)6$9
%:8*++(/
;0
1$(
8%109
8-*:109
8%10
):/
8-*:109
-+
&6(8%).
/%&1+%81
1-
7*:/
1$(
8-:&1+*81%-:9+(8-:&1+*81%-:9
+($);%.%1)1%-:9
-+
+(6.)8('(:1
-7
6*;.%8
.%;+)+0
7)8%.%1%(&9
%:8.*/%:=
1$(
7*+:%&$%:=
):/
(h*%66%:=
-76*;.%8
.%;+)+0
7)8%.%1%(&9
-+
1$(
)8h*%&%1%-:
-+
.()&(
-7
+().
6+-6(+10
7-+
6*;.%8
.%;+)+0
7)8%.%1%(&>mpo
qrst
uvwvxwvur
trvyy
vuuyz
{|yz
s}
~r�
uw{u{ts~s{|
vuuw{���
�z
~r�
�{~�wt
s|�y���t
vyy
{}
~r�
}{yy{�s|xv��{�|~v�sys~z
w���sw���|~t�mso
n
w���sw���|~
~rv~
~r�
uw{����t
}w{�
~r�
tvy�
{}
~r�
�{|�t
��
�t��
{|yz
}{w
~r�
u�wu{t�t
tu��s}s��
s|
~rstuvwvxwvur
v|�
|{~
}{w
v|z
{~r�w
u�wu{t��
s|�y��s|x
u�wt{||�y
v|�
{u�wv~s|x
��u�|t�t
{}
~r�
u��ys�
ys�wvwz�msso
n
yst~
{}
~r�
tu��s}s�
u��ys�
ys�wvwz
}v�sys~s�t
uw{���~t
~{
��
}�|���
v|�
��w~s}s�v~s{|
~rv~
~r�
�s~z�
�{�|~z�
�s~zv|�
�{�|~z�
{w
tu��svy
�st~ws�~
rvt
��vy�v~��
~r�
��xw��
~{
�rs�r
��st~s|x
u��ys�
ys�wvwz
}v�sys~s�t
vw�
s|v����v~�s|
���~s|x
~r�
|���t
{}�
v|�
~r�
��xw��
~{
�rs�r
~r�
uw{u{t��
u��ys�
ys�wvwz
}v�sys~s�t
uw{���~t
w�tu{|�
~{
~r�|���t
{}�
~r�
w�ts��|~t
s|
~r�
ys�wvwz
t�w�s��
vw�v�
s|
~r�
����y{u��|~
{}
~rv~
yst~�



��������� ��		
���
�
�����
����	
����������
����������
�� 	��
	� �����!�
�����
�������	"#$$$%
&
'()*$'(+(,-
-./-
-.(
0$-12
03*,-12
0$-1
/,4
03*,-12
3'
56(0$/7
4$5-'$0-
03,4*0-
/,
/,,*/72
$,4(6(,4(,-6('83'+/,0(
/*4$-
-3
(,5*'(
-./-
-.(
8*,45
./9(
:((,
(;6(,4(4
3,71
3,
-.(
6*:7$0
7$:'/'1
8/0$7$-$(5
6'3<(0-57$5-(4=#$9%
&
'()*$'(+(,-
-./-
-.(
0$-12
03*,-12
0$-1
/,4
03*,-12
3'
56(0$/7
4$5-'$0-
03,4*0-
/,
/,,*/72
$,4(6(,4(,-8$,/,0$/7
/*4$-
38
-.(
6'30((45
8'3+
-.(
5/7(
38
-.(
:3,45
*,-$7
/77
38
-.35(
6'30((45
./9(
:((,
(;6(,4(4
83'
-.(6*:7$0
7$:'/'1
8/0$7$-$(5
6'3<(0-5=#>%
?3'
6*'635(5
38
-.$5
6/'/@'/6.2
A56(0$/7
4$5-'$0-B
./5
-.(
5/+(
+(/,$,@
/5
-./-
-('+
$5
*5(4
$,
5*:4$9$5$3,#0%
38
C(0-$3,
D
38
&'-$07(
EFFF
>2
:*-
43(5
,3-
$,07*4(
/
'(4(9(736+(,-
/@(,01=GHI
JKLMNLOPLQRSNRT
QRU
KLOVW
XWKYNPNKRP
KZ
[QM
KW
KZ
LONP
\KRPLNL]LNKR̂
Q
PHOKK[
SNPLWNHL̂
HK__]RNLU
HK[[VTVSNPLWNHL̂
HK]RLU
KZZNHV
KZ
VS]HQLNKR̂
HNLÛ
HK]RLÛ
HNLU
QRS
HK]RLÛ
KW
PXVHNQ[
SNPLWNHL
_QU
[VYU
Q
̀ àXVWHVRLaYKLV
QSYQ[KWV_
LQb
X]WP]QRL
LK
P]cSNYNPNKR
GcIdefghijk
lOQL
mVHLNKR
no
KZ
pWLNH[V
qrs
LOVWVKZ
NP
Q_VRSVS
LK
WVQSteuvw
xyw
GQI
p
HK]RLÛ
HNLÛ
LKMR̂
LKMRPONX̂
cKQWS
KZ
VS]HQLNKR̂
KW
PHOKK[
SNPLWNHL
POQ[[
RKL
NRH]W
QRU
NRSVcLVSRVPPKW
[NQcN[NLU
NR
QRU
_QRRVW
KW
ZKW
QRU
X]WXKPV
VbHVVSNRT
NR
QRU
UVQW
LOV
NRHK_V
QRS
WVYVR]V
XWKYNSVS
ZKW
LOQLUVQŴ
MNLOK]L
LOV
QPPVRL
KZ
LMKaLONWSP
KZ
LOV
YKLVWP
KZ
LOV
X]c[NH
VRLNLU
YKLNRT
QL
QR
V[VHLNKR
LK
cV
OV[S
ZKW
LOQLX]WXKPV̂
VbHVXL
LOQL
MNLO
WVPXVHL
LK
QRU
P]HO
X]c[NH
VRLNLU
LOQL
NP
Q]LOKWNzVS
LK
NRH]W
NRSVcLVSRVPP
ZKW
X]c[NHPHOKK[
X]WXKPVP̂
QRU
XWKXKPNLNKR
ZKW
LOV
NRH]WWVRHV
KZ
NRSVcLVSRVPP
NR
LOV
ZKW_
KZ
TVRVWQ[
Kc[NTQLNKR
cKRSP
ZKWLOV
X]WXKPV
KZ
WVXQNWNRT̂
WVHKRPLW]HLNRT̂
KW
WVX[QHNRT
X]c[NH
PHOKK[
c]N[SNRTP
SVLVW_NRVŜ
NR
LOV
_QRRVWXWVPHWNcVS
cU
[QM̂
LK
cV
PLW]HL]WQ[[U
]RPQZV
ZKW
PHOKK[
]PV̂
POQ[[
cV
QSKXLVS
]XKR
LOV
QXXWKYQ[
KZ
Q
_Q{KWNLU
KZLOV
YKLVWP
KZ
LOV
X]c[NH
VRLNLU
YKLNRT
KR
LOV
XWKXKPNLNKR
QL
LOQL
V[VHLNKR|
RKW
]R[VPP
cVZKWV
KW
QL
LOV
LN_V
KZNRH]WWNRT
LOV
NRSVcLVSRVPP̂
XWKYNPNKR
POQ[[
cV
_QSV
ZKW
LOV
HK[[VHLNKR
KZ
QR
QRR]Q[
LQb
P]ZZNHNVRL
LK
XQU
LOVNRLVWVPL
KR
LOV
NRSVcLVSRVPP
QP
NL
ZQ[[P
S]V̂
QRS
LK
XWKYNSV
ZKW
Q
PNR}NRT
Z]RS
ZKW
LOV
XQU_VRL
KZ
LOV
XWNRHNXQ[LOVWVKẐ
KR
KW
cVZKWV
_QL]WNLÛ
MONHO
POQ[[
RKL
VbHVVS
ZKWLU
UVQWP
ZWK_
LOV
LN_V
KZ
HKRLWQHLNRT
LOV
NRSVcLVSRVPPdGcI
JKLMNLOPLQRSNRT
P]cSNYNPNKR
GQÎ
KR
KW
QZLVW
JKYV_cVW
ô
~���̂
NR
LOV
HQPV
KZ
QRU
PHOKK[
SNPLWNHL̂
HK__]RNLUHK[[VTV
SNPLWNHL̂
KW
HK]RLU
KZZNHV
KZ
VS]HQLNKR̂
QRU
XWKXKPNLNKR
ZKW
LOV
NRH]WWVRHV
KZ
NRSVcLVSRVPP
NR
LOV
ZKW_
KZTVRVWQ[
Kc[NTQLNKR
cKRSP
ZKW
LOV
HKRPLW]HLNKR̂
WVHKRPLW]HLNKR̂
WVOQcN[NLQLNKR̂
KW
WVX[QHV_VRL
KZ
PHOKK[
ZQHN[NLNVP̂NRH[]SNRT
LOV
Z]WRNPONRT
QRS
V�]NXXNRT
KZ
PHOKK[
ZQHN[NLNVP̂
KW
LOV
QH�]NPNLNKR
KW
[VQPV
KZ
WVQ[
XWKXVWLU
ZKW
PHOKK[ZQHN[NLNVP̂
POQ[[
cV
QSKXLVS
]XKR
LOV
QXXWKYQ[
KZ
̀ 
̀XVWHVRL
KZ
LOV
YKLVWP
KZ
LOV
SNPLWNHL
KW
HK]RLÛ
QP
QXXWKXWNQLV̂YKLNRT
KR
LOV
XWKXKPNLNKR
QL
QR
V[VHLNKRd
lONP
P]cSNYNPNKR
POQ[[
QXX[U
KR[U
LK
Q
XWKXKPNLNKR
ZKW
LOV
NRH]WWVRHV
KZNRSVcLVSRVPP
NR
LOV
ZKW_
KZ
TVRVWQ[
Kc[NTQLNKR
cKRSP
ZKW
LOV
X]WXKPVP
PXVHNZNVS
NR
LONP
P]cSNYNPNKR
NZ
LOVXWKXKPNLNKR
_VVLP
Q[[
KZ
LOV
QHHK]RLQcN[NLU
WV�]NWV_VRLP
KZ
XQWQTWQXO
G�I
KZ
P]cSNYNPNKR
GcI
KZ
mVHLNKR
n
KZ
pWLNH[Vqsss
pdGHI
JKLMNLOPLQRSNRT
P]cSNYNPNKR
GQÎ
KR
KW
QZLVW
LOV
VZZVHLNYV
SQLV
KZ
LOV
_VQP]WV
QSSNRT
LONP
P]cSNYNPNKR̂
NR
LOVHQPV
KZ
QRU
HNLÛ
HK]RLÛ
KW
HNLU
QRS
HK]RLÛ
QRU
XWKXKPNLNKR
LK
NRH]W
NRSVcLVSRVPP
NR
LOV
ZKW_
KZ
TVRVWQ[Kc[NTQLNKR
cKRSP
POQ[[
cV
QSKXLVS
cU
̀ 
̀XVWHVRL
KZ
LOV
YKLVWP
KZ
LOV
HNLÛ
HK]RLÛ
KW
HNLU
QRS
HK]RLÛ
QPQXX[NHQc[V̂
YKLNRT
KR
LOV
XWKXKPNLNKR
QL
QR
V[VHLNKR̂
MOVWV
LOV
TVRVWQ[
Kc[NTQLNKR
cKRSP
MK][S
Z]RS
X]c[NH[NcWQWNVP̂
NRH[]SNRT̂
c]L
RKL
[N_NLVS
LK̂
LOV
HKRPLW]HLNKR̂
WVHKRPLW]HLNKR̂
WVOQcN[NLQLNKR̂
KW
WVX[QHV_VRL
KZ
X]c[NH[NcWQWU
ZQHN[NLNVP̂
LOV
Z]WRNPONRT
QRS
V�]NXXNRT
KZ
X]c[NH
[NcWQWU
ZQHN[NLNVP̂
KW
LOV
QH�]NPNLNKR
KW
[VQPV
KZ
WVQ[XWKXVWLU
ZKW
X]c[NH
[NcWQWU
ZQHN[NLNVPdGSI
�OVR
LMK
KW
_KWV
XWKXKPNLNKRP
ZKW
NRH]WWNRT
QRU
NRSVcLVSRVPP
KW
[NQcN[NLU
QWV
P]c_NLLVS
QL
LOV
PQ_V
V[VHLNKR̂LOV
YKLVP
HQPL
ZKW
QRS
QTQNRPL
VQHO
XWKXKPNLNKR
POQ[[
cV
HK]RLVS
PVXQWQLV[Û
QRS
MOVR
LMKaLONWSP
KW
Q
_Q{KWNLU
KW`̀ 
XVWHVRL
KZ
LOV
YKLVWP̂
QP
LOV
HQPV
_QU
cV̂
YKLNRT
KR
QRU
KRV
KZ
LOKPV
XWKXKPNLNKRP̂
YKLV
NR
ZQYKW
LOVWVKẐ
LOVXWKXKPNLNKR
POQ[[
cV
SVV_VS
QSKXLVSd



��������� �	

�������������������������	�����������������������	�	��
�
	���� !
"#$%&�'#(") *+,-�./01234-5)�67897896:;�6<)66�$=$>?9@97�ABCD/,-E�3F2-GF-)�FBG,-G,�3,+G5+E53)�52H2,+1�12,-E+FIJKLMNOPLMNQR� STUVWUW��XV��SYYUTZ[\��TS]̂ _�LL̀�LMNQ�� abcdefghdb�cijdkcblmgin�opqrsopqt�gijmcbg�kikkdfh�$""&=>uv�>(uu wBJ�9@97� (G,EB5/F-5�0I�$33-C01I�=-C0-E�xE+I3BG��y-0E/+EI�:<z�96:;�S{�|}~����������������������������������������������������|~�{��~������~|����~��|}����������������������  ¡¢£¤ ¥¦£§¡�̈©ª«¤¡ ¬¤�£¢¡¤¦�SZ�L®L̄ �̀|°�|±�{���̀�²�|�°�{��W���~|����~��|}�³�́µ¶��}�°}·���°������������������̧������������������̧���¹���ºº������»��¼�����¹�º�½���¾����������¿�����������º�À��º��»��������������������������Á�º����¹����������������¹�������������Â�������������������������Ã������Ä�º»�ÅÆ��Ç�ÆÈ�����������������������������������������É�����¹���������¹������Æ����ÆÇ�����º���Á������������������¹���������������¼�����¹�����������������������������������������������������������������º�����Ã��������������������º»�º��������������������������������¹������¹�Ê����Ã�ºº�½��º����¾������������������������º��������������������������������������º�������������������������¹��¹���º�º������»��������������½��������������¹���Á�º����¹����������������¹�����������������������������������������UË�°~�{���|Ì�́��Í���°�Î���|�°�°~�±��Î�́µ¶��}�°}·���°�|{����Ïµ���°�~·��|��́~���}�µ�°���Î�°~µ���Î�����|��°�N�~��NL̀�{}�µ°�Í�̀�~���{}�µ����{°~�µ}~��{��{�°́�}�Î����|��|°��Î�°~µ���Ð·�°�¶����Ì�µ���°~|~��~·|~��~��°�~·���{~�{~��Î�~·��[���°�|~µ���~���{|}~�����°�|~��{�~·|~�Ì�µ���|����°°�����~|����~��|}��{�́µ¶��}�°}·���°�|{��~·��|¶���~���Î�́µ́ ��°�~��µ°���{Î��±|~��{�|{��}�±±µ{�}|~��{�~�}·{������°�~��Î�{�̀��Í|�µ|~�̀}��|~�̀�|{��}�±±µ{�}|~���{Î��±|~��{̀���Ïµ���{��¶�~·�}��{�~�Í��|{��~�}·{�}|��°Ñ���°�Ò�~�³�±|Ó���~����Ś �́�́��|~��{³�{����Ô�°}|��̂�±±�~~��³�{�»�����[�}|��Õ����|±³�{���¦Ö¡�×¡©× ¡�©Ø�¦Ö¡�¤¦¥¦¡�©Ø�̈¥ £Ø©Ù«£¥�©�¡«¥̈ ¦�¥¤�Ø©  ©Ú¤Û�ÜÝÞßàáâ�ãä���������������������������������������������������������̧

å�� �	

�æ�ç�����	�� ��
	ç���	��è�é ê�ë
	���	��� ì�í��î������ ï �ð�ë���	��	��� ï �ñ�ò��	��



��������� �	

�������������������������	�����������������������	�	��
�
	���� !"#"#$%&%�'()�*+�,-�./0,-/�1234�567�896:7�;</�=+>;-2?;@,+(3�A2(3@;4�B,CC@>>@,+�><(33�?,+>@D/-�D/E/3,F@+G�(+D-/?,CC/+D@+G�;,�;</�>;(;/�.,(-D�?,CF2;/-�>?@/+?/�?,+;/+;�>;(+D(-D>�0,-�H@+D/-G(-;/+�(+D�G-(D/>�6�;,�687@+?32>@E/7�F2->2(+;�;,�-/?,CC/+D(;@,+>�D/E/3,F/D�.4�(�G-,2F�,0�?,CF2;/-�>?@/+?/�/IF/-;>J�K</�=+>;-2?;@,+(3A2(3@;4�B,CC@>>@,+�><(33�?,+>@D/-�/I@>;@+G�?,CF2;/-�>?@/+?/�?,+;/+;�>;(+D(-D>7�L<@?<�@+?32D/7�.2;�(-/�+,;3@C@;/D�;,7�;</�+(;@,+(3�MN68�?,CF2;/-�>?@/+?/�?,+;/+;�>;(+D(-D>�D/E/3,F/D�.4�;</�B,CF2;/-�O?@/+?/�K/(?</->P>>,?@(;@,+7�(+D�?,+>@D/-�?,+;/+;�>;(+D(-D>�;<(;�@+?32D/7�.2;�(-/�+,;�+/?/>>(-@34�3@C@;/D�;,7�>;(+D(-D>�0,-;/(?<@+G�?,D@+GJ�QRSTUV�WUS�STVTXWY�YTXZ[WQ\]�̂,-�F2-F,>/>�,0�;<@>�>/?;@,+7�_?,D@+G̀�@>�;</�F-,?/>>�,0�?,+E/-;@+G�(F-,G-(C�D/>@G+�@+;,�(+�(??2-(;/�(+D�D/;(@3/D�-/F-/>/+;(;@,+�,0�;<(;�F-,G-(C�@+�(�>2@;(.3/�3(+G2(G/J�aR[bc[bRdZd�Re�XfTd�dZQXTRUg�hSTVTXWY�YTXZ[WQ\i�jZWUd�XfZ�dkTYYd�WddRQTWXZS�lTXf�cdTUV�XZQfURYRV\�XR�ZUWmYZ�cdZ[d�XReTUSg�ZnWYcWXZg�R[VWUToZg�Q[ZWXZg�WUS�QRjjcUTQWXZ�TUeR[jWXTRU]'.)�'6)�K</�O2F/-@+;/+D/+;7�@+�?,+>23;(;@,+�L@;<�;</�>;(;/�.,(-D7�><(33�?,+>@D/-�?,+E/+@+G�;</�G-,2F�,0�/IF/-;>-/0/-/+?/D�@+�>2.D@E@>@,+�'()7�(+D�><(33�/+>2-/�;<(;�;</�C/C./->�,0�;</�G-,2F�@+?32D/7�.2;�(-/�+,;�+/?/>>(-@343@C@;/D�;,7�(33�,0�;</�0,33,L@+Gp'P)�K/(?</->�L<,�;/(?<�?,CF2;/-�>?@/+?/7�@+?32D@+G�C(;</C(;@?>�(+D�>?@/+?/�;/(?</->7�@+�H@+D/-G(-;/+�(+DG-(D/>�6�;,�687�@+?32>@E/J'q)�O?<,,3>@;/�F-@+?@F(3>J'B)�O?<,,3�D@>;-@?;�,-�?,2+;4�,00@?/�,0�/D2?(;@,+�(DC@+@>;-(;,->J'r)�s+@E/->@;4�F-,0/>>,->J't)�u/F-/>/+;(;@E/>�,0�F-@E(;/�>/?;,-�.2>@+/>>�,-�@+D2>;-4J'8)�K</�O2F/-@+;/+D/+;7�@+�?,+>23;(;@,+�L@;<�;</�>;(;/�.,(-D7�><(33�/+>2-/�;<(;�,+/v<(30�,0�;</�C/C./->�,0�;</G-,2F�(-/�;/(?</->�(>�D/>?-@./D�@+�>2.F(-(G-(F<�'P)�,0�F(-(G-(F<�'6)J'?)�K</�?,CF2;/-�>?@/+?/�?,+;/+;�>;(+D(-D>�C(4�./�2>/D�.4�>?<,,3�D@>;-@?;>�;,�D/E/3,F�?,CF2;/-�>?@/+?/F-,G-(C>�(+D�?,2->/�(>>/>>C/+;>�.2;�(-/�+,;�C(+D(;,-4J'D)�K</�,F/-(;@,+�,0�;<@>�>/?;@,+�@>�>2.w/?;�;,�(+�(FF-,F-@(;@,+�./@+G�C(D/�0,-�F2-F,>/>�,0�;<@>�>/?;@,+�@+�;</(++2(3�q2DG/;�P?;�,-�(+,;</-�>;(;2;/JOtBK=*x�6J'()K</�y/G@>3(;2-/�0@+D>�(+D�D/?3(-/>�;<(;7�(??,-D@+G�;,�;</�PC/-@?(+�y@.-(-4�P>>,?@(;@,+7�(�D@G@;(3343@;/-(;/�F/->,+�D,/>�(33�,0�;</�0,33,L@+Gp'6)z,>>/>>/>�;</�E(-@/;4�,0�>H@33>7�;/?<+@?(3�(+D�?,G+@;@E/7�-/{2@-/D�;,�0@+D7�2+D/->;(+D7�/E(32(;/7�?-/(;/7�(+D?,CC2+@?(;/�D@G@;(3�@+0,-C(;@,+�@+�(�L@D/�E(-@/;4�,0�0,-C(;>J'8)=>�(.3/�;,�2>/�D@E/->/�;/?<+,3,G@/>�(FF-,F-@(;/34�(+D�/00/?;@E/34�;,�-/;-@/E/�@+0,-C(;@,+7�@+;/-F-/;�-/>23;>7�(+Dw2DG/�;</�{2(3@;4�,0�;<(;�@+0,-C(;@,+J'5)s+D/->;(+D>�;</�-/3(;@,+><@F�./;L//+�;/?<+,3,G47�3@0/v3,+G�3/(-+@+G7�F/->,+(3�F-@E(?47�(+D�>;/L(-D><@F�,0@+0,-C(;@,+J'|)s>/>�;</>/�>H@33>�(+D�;</�(FF-,F-@(;/�;/?<+,3,G4�;,�?,CC2+@?(;/�(+D�?,33(.,-(;/�L@;<�F//->7�?,33/(G2/>70(C@347�(+D�,+�,??(>@,+7�;</�G/+/-(3�F2.3@?J'})s>/>�;</>/�>H@33>�;,�(?;@E/34�F(-;@?@F(;/�@+�?@E@?�>,?@/;4�(+D�?,+;-@.2;/�;,�(�E@.-(+;7�@+0,-C/D7�(+D�/+G(G/D?,CC2+@;4J'.)=;�@>�;</-/0,-/�;</�@+;/+;�,0�;</�y/G@>3(;2-/�;,�/+(?;�3/G@>3(;@,+�;<(;�L,23D�(DD-/>>�D@G@;(3�3@;/-(?4�@+�F2.3@?>?<,,3>�(+D�;</�(.@3@;4�,0�F2F@3>�;,�2>/�@+0,-C(;@,+�(+D�?,CC2+@?(;@,+�;/?<+,3,G@/>�;,�0@+D7�/E(32(;/7�?-/(;/7�(+D?,CC2+@?(;/�@+0,-C(;@,+7�-/{2@-@+G�.,;<�?,G+@;@E/�(+D�;/?<+@?(3�>H@33>J



��������� �	

�����������������	
�	�������	������	��
	����������
�����	��
���
 !"#$�%!& ' ()*+�,-./012+3'�4567867489�4:'44�,; <=954�,->0/�0?1*@-A*0B?'�C+30)�/0*+@)AD'�CB3+/�A-@@0A-/-CEFGHIJKGHILM� NOPQRPR��SQ��TPQNUP��ONVWX�GIY�GHIL�� Z[\]̂_̀ a][�\bc]d\[ef̀ bg�hijklhijm�̀bcf\[̀ �dbdd]_a� $n"%$�<&oo nBE�954� &?*@B3-A+3�.D� +?)*B@�(B33�p,@0?A0>)/�AB)-*2B@'� +?)*B@�q)Ar1B?s�p,@0?A0>)/�AB)-*2B@'�"11+C./D�;+C.+@�;-//0?s�ptB)-*2B@1'� +?)*B@1�<@)3uB@3�)?3�o+Dv)s�ptB)-*2B@'�"11+C./D�;+C.+@�wB+>+/s��q)?-)@D�45x�7489� Ny�z{|�|}�z~~�T�{|�}y��IGH����|}�|���P~�{z|�}y�W}~�Y����z|�y��|}��������y�|��{|�}y��� �����������������������������T��L�HY�z��z��y~�~Y�R}~~���������y�|��{|�}y����~�z���|��z{����}~���{����{�����P ��|�y���z¡���¢������|���z~}�|�~�{}�����}£��|�~��£}����z~���I�|}��Y��y{����¤�Y�zy~�£}����z~���J�|}�IGY��y{����¤�Y|}�}££���{}�������y����{�£��~�z��z��}£��|�~�Y��y{��~�y���}{�z���{��y{����P ��|�y���z¡���|z¥�������|���Sy�|��{|�}yz�¦�z��|��W}������}y�zy~���¢������|���{}������}y�|}Y�z�}y��}|����|��y��Y���{}���y~�{����{�����£�z��¡}�§��|}|���T|z|���}z�~�}£�P~�{z|�}y�U����¥����¡}��~���¢�����|���{}������}y�|}�~�¤��}�Y�zy~�|����|z|��¥}z�~�|}�z~}�|Y���̈�{|Y�}���}~�£�Y�z��}~��{����{������y���~�z���|��z{��£}��§�y~���z�|�y�zy~���z~���I�|}�IGY��y{����¤�Y�£}��¤}��y|z�������¥���~�{z|}����U��¥����¡}��~���¢�����|���{}������}y�|}���¥��|�|����}~���{����{�����|}�|����|z|��¥}z�~�}y�}��¥�£}���©zy�z���IYGHGHY�ª«ª¬�zy~�¡}��~���¢�����|����|z|��¥}z�~�|}�z~}�|Y���̈�{|Y�}���}~�£��|����}~���{����{�����}y�}��¥�£}��Oz�{���IY�GHGHY�ª«ª¬��y�z{{}�~zy{��¡�|�����{�£��~���}{�~��z����¢������y|���U���¥����¡}��~���¢�����|���T|z|�R��z�|��y|�}£�P~�{z|�}y�|}��z§��z¤z��z¥���}y��|��Sy|��y�|�®�¥���|��z����|�}£����}��{���zy~��y�|��{|�}yz���z|���z��}y���~�z���|��z{�Y��y{��~�y����~�z���|��z{����}£����}yz��~�¤��}���y|���}��z���£}��|�z{�����}̄|����z̈}��|����N���}���z|�}y��y}���°��{z��W}���||����������±}{z����}��z���y}���²��³��³����́ ��²���������́ �����́�µ����������������́����¶�·�̧¹º»¼½¾�¿À�FzM�U���±�����z|����£�y~��zy~�~�{�z����z���}£�|���£}��}¡�y��

Á�� �	

�Â�Ã�����	�� Ä�
	Ã���	��Å�Æ ��Ç
	���	��� È�É��Ê������ Ë����Ç���	��	��� Ë��Ì�Í��	��



��������� �	

�����������������	
�	�������	������	��
	����������
�����	��
��� !"�#$%�&'()*+�),-+)(*.)'/&�'0�.%($/'+'1)(*+�2%3%+'-,%/.�*4%�-%43*&)3%5�*/2�.$%�4%*($�*/2�)/0+6%/(%�'0�2)1).*+,%2)*�-+*.0'4,&�7)++�('/.)/6%�.'�%8-*/29 :"�;%*4+<�.7'=.$)42&�'0�>,%4)(*/�*26+.&�6&%�&'()*+�/%.7'4?)/1�&).%&5�*/2�&'()*+�,%2)*�6&*1%�)&�6@)A6).'6&�*,'/1.$%�<'6/1%&.�*26+.&5�7).$�'3%4�BC�-%4(%/.�'0�<'6/1�*26+.&�6&)/1�&'()*+�,%2)*9 D"�#7'�'6.�'0�%3%4<�.$4%%�*26+.&�&*<�0*@4)(*.%2�/%7&�&.'4)%&�(*6&%�*�14%*.�2%*+�'0�('/06&)'/�*@'6.�.$%�@*&)(0*(.&�'0�(644%/.�)&&6%&�*/2�%3%/.&9 E"�>�4%(%/.�F.*/0'42�G/)3%4&).<�&.62<�&$'7%2�.$*.�H:�-%4(%/.�'0�,)22+%�&($''+�-6-)+&�&.4611+%2�.'�2)&.)/16)&$*23%4.)&%,%/.&�04',�/%7&�&.'4)%&9 I"�J64)/1�.$%�0)/*+5�(4).)(*+�,'/.$&�'0�.$%�:C!K�-4%&)2%/.)*+�(*,-*)1/5�:C�.'-=-%40'4,)/1�0*+&%�%+%(.)'/�&.'4)%&04',�$'*8�LMNOPMON�Q%@�&).%&�*/2�$<-%4-*4.)&*/�@+'1&�1%/%4*.%2�H5R!!5CCC�&$*4%&5�4%*(.)'/&5�*/2�(',,%/.&�'/&'()*+�,%2)*S�7$%4%5�7).$)/�.$%�&*,%�.),%�-%4)'25�.$%�:C�@%&.=-%40'4,)/1�%+%(.)'/�&.'4)%&�04',�!B�,*T'4�/%7&U/.%4/%.�Q%@�&).%&�1%/%4*.%2�*�.'.*+�'0�R5DKR5CCC�&$*4%&5�4%*(.)'/&5�*/2�(',,%/.&�'/�V*(%@''?9 K"�U.�)&�/%(%&&*4<�.'�('/04'/.�A6%&.)'/&�*@'6.�.$%�,'4*+�'@+)1*.)'/&�*/2�%.$)(*+�&.*/2*42&�4%1*42)/1�7$*.*--%*4&�'/�&'()*+�,%2)*�/%.7'4?&�*/2�2)1).*+�-+*.0'4,&9 R"�>((%&&�.'�,%2)*�+).%4*(<�%26(*.)'/�0'4�*++�-6-)+&�)&�*�($*++%/1%5�%&-%()*++<�0'4�6/2%44%-4%&%/.%2�*/2%('/',)(*++<�2)&*23*/.*1%2�(',,6/).)%&9 @"�U.�)&�.$%4%0'4%�.$%�)/.%/.�'0�.$%�W%1)&+*.64%�.'�%/&64%�.$*.�<'6/1�*26+.&�*4%�-4%-*4%2�7).$�,%2)*�+).%4*(<�&?)++&/%(%&&*4<�.'�&*0%+<5�4%&-'/&)@+<5�*/2�(4).)(*++<�('/&6,%�*/2�6&%�&'()*+�,%2)*�*/2�'.$%4�0'4,&�'0�,%2)*9XYZ[�\[�F%(.)'/�I!:CK9E�)&�*22%2�.'�.$%�]26(*.)'/�̂'2%5�.'�4%*2_à\bc[d[� *"�V'4�-64-'&%&�'0�.$)&�&%(.)'/5�e2)1).*+�().)f%/&$)-g�*/2�e,%2)*�+).%4*(<g�*4%�@4'*2�.%4,&�.$*.%/(',-*&&�('/&6,-.)'/�*/2�6&%�'0�,%2)*�*/2�2)1).*+�-4'26(.&�*/2�*4%�2%0)/%2�*&�0'++'7&_ !"�eJ)1).*+�().)f%/&$)-g�,%*/&�*�2)3%4&%�&%.�'0�&?)++&�4%+*.%2�.'�(644%/.�.%($/'+'1<�*/2�&'()*+�,%2)*5�)/(+62)/1�.$%/'4,&�'0�*--4'-4)*.%5�4%&-'/&)@+%5�*/2�$%*+.$<�@%$*3)'49 :"�eh%2)*�+).%4*(<g�,%*/&�.$%�*@)+).<�.'�*((%&&5�*/*+<f%5�%3*+6*.%5�*/2�6&%�,%2)*�*/2�%/(',-*&&%&�.$%0'6/2*.)'/*+�&?)++&�.$*.�+%*2�.'�2)1).*+�().)f%/&$)-9 @"�#$%�U/&.46(.)'/*+�i6*+).<�̂',,)&&)'/�&$*++�2%3%+'-5�*/2�.$%�&.*.%�@'*42�&$*++�*2'-.5�4%T%(.5�'4�,'2)0<5�*,'2%+�(644)(6+6,�)/�,%2)*�+).%4*(<�0'4�?)/2%41*4.%/�*/2�14*2%&�!�.'�!:5�)/(+6&)3%5�0'4�3'+6/.*4<�6&%�@<%26(*.'4&9 ("�#$%�,'2%+�(644)(6+6,�)/�,%2)*�+).%4*(<�&$*++�@%�2%&)1/%2�0'4�.$%�-64-'&%�'0�-4'3)2)/1�)/&.46(.)'/�)/�.$%�&*0%*/2�4%&-'/&)@+%�6&%�'0�,%2)*�*/2�&6--'4.)/1�-6-)+&j�6&%�'0�(4).)(*+�.$)/?)/1�&?)++&�7$%/�('/&6,)/1�,%2)*9�#$%,'2%+�(644)(6+6,�)/�,%2)*�+).%4*(<�&$*++�*224%&&5�@6.�/'.�@%�+),).%2�.'5�)/&.46(.)/1�-6-)+&�)/�$'7�.'�2'�*++�'0�.$%0'++'7)/1_ !"�F*0%+<�*/2�4%&-'/&)@+<�6&%�*/2�('/&6,%�,%2)*9 :"�>((%&&�4%+%3*/.�*/2�*((64*.%�)/0'4,*.)'/�.$4'61$�,%2)*9 D"�>/*+<f%�,%2)*�('/.%/.�)/�*�(4).)(*+�7*<9 E"�]3*+6*.%�.$%�(',-4%$%/&)3%/%&&5�(644%/(<5�4%+%3*/(%5�(4%2)@)+).<5�*6.$'4).<5�*/2�*((64*(<�'0�,%2)*�('/.%/.9 2"�#$%�,'2%+�(644)(6+6,�)/�,%2)*�+).%4*(<�,*<�@%�2%&)1/%2�.'�-4','.%�.$%�2%3%+'-,%/.�'0�-6-)+&j�&?)++&�)/�*++�'0.$%�0'++'7)/1_ !"�̂4%*.)3).<�*/2�)//'3*.)'/9 :"�̂',,6/)(*.)'/�*/2�('++*@'4*.)'/9 D"�k%&%*4($�*/2�)/0'4,*.)'/�0+6%/(<9 E"�̂4).)(*+�.$)/?)/1�*/2�-4'@+%,�&'+3)/19 I"�J)1).*+�().)f%/&$)-9



��������� �	

�����������������	
�	�������	������	��
	����������
�����	��
��� !"�#$%&'()(*+�(,$-./0('1�.'2�%('%$,/13 4"�5'6(-7./0('8�7$20.8�.'2�/$%&'()(*0%.)�)0/$-.%+3 9"�:('%$,/1�(6�7$20.�-$,-$1$'/./0('�.'2�1/$-$(/+,0'*3 $"�#&$�7(2$)�%;--0%;);7�0'�7$20.�)0/$-.%+�1&.))�2(�<(/&�(6�/&$�6())(=0'*> ?"�@-(A02$�7(2$)�)$11('1�.'2�.%/0A0/0$1�6(-�$.%&�*-.2$�)$A$)�.'2�02$'/06+�1;,,(-/0'*�0'1/-;%/0('.)�7./$-0.)1�6(-;1$�0'�0/1�07,)$7$'/./0('3 B"�52$'/06+�/&$�=.+1�0'�=&0%&�0/�.)0*'1�=0/&8�.'2�01�1;,,(-/0A$�(68�/&$�%(77('�%(-$�.%.2$70%�%('/$'/�1/.'2.-21.'2�/&$�C$D/�E$'$-./0('�F%0$'%$�1/.'2.-213 6"�5'�2$A$)(,0'*�/&$�7(2$)�%;--0%;);7�0'�7$20.�)0/$-.%+8�/&$�5'1/-;%/0('.)�G;.)0/+�:(770110('�1&.))�%('A$'$�.'.2A01(-+�*-(;,�%(7,-01$2�(6�$D,$-/1�0'�7$20.�)0/$-.%+�$2;%./0('3�H�7.I(-0/+�(6�/&01�*-(;,�1&.))�<$�%;--$'/�,;<)0%1%&(()�$)$7$'/.-+�(-�1$%('2.-+�%).11-((7�/$.%&$-1�=&(�&.A$�.�,-(6$110('.)�/$.%&0'*�%-$2$'/0.)�/&./�01�A.)02;'2$-�1/./$�).=�.'2�=&(�&.A$�$D,$-0$'%$�(-�$D,$-/01$�0'�7$20.�)0/$-.%+�$2;%./0('3 *"�#&$�5'1/-;%/0('.)�G;.)0/+�:(770110('�1&.))�&()2�.�70'07;7�(6�/=(�,;<)0%�&$.-0'*1�6(-�/&$�,;<)0%�/(�,-(A02$0',;/�('�/&$�7(2$)�%;--0%;);7�0'�7$20.�)0/$-.%+�0'�.%%(-2.'%$�=0/&�/&$�J.*)$+KL$$'$�M,$'�N$$/0'*�H%/� H-/0%)$�O %(77$'%0'*�=0/&�F$%/0('�???BP"�(6�:&.,/$-�?�(6�@.-/�?�(6�Q0A010('�R�(6�#0/)$�B�(6�/&$�E(A$-'7$'/�:(2$"3 &"�M'�(-�<$6(-$�S.';.-+�?8�BPBP8�TUTVW�/&$�5'1/-;%/0('.)�G;.)0/+�:(770110('�1&.))�1;<70/�/(�/&$�1/./$�<(.-2�/&$7(2$)�%;--0%;);7�0'�7$20.�)0/$-.%+3 0"�M'�(-�<$6(-$�N.-%&�R?8�BPBP8�TUTVW�/&$�1/./$�<(.-2�1&.))�.2(,/8�-$I$%/8�(-�7(206+�/&$�7(2$)�%;--0%;);7�0'7$20.�)0/$-.%+�1;<70//$2�<+�/&$�5'1/-;%/0('.)�G;.)0/+�:(770110('�./�.�1;<1$X;$'/�,;<)0%�7$$/0'*3 I"�56�/&$�1/./$�<(.-2�7(2060$1�/&$�7(2$)�%;--0%;);7�0'�7$20.�)0/$-.%+�1;<70//$2�<+�/&$�5'1/-;%/0('.)�G;.)0/+:(770110('8�/&$�1/./$�<(.-2�1&.))�2(�<(/&�(6�/&$�6())(=0'*> ?"�YD,).0'8�0'�=-0/0'*8�/&$�-$.1('1�6(-�/&$�7(2060%./0('1�/(�/&$�E(A$-'(-�.'2�/&$�.,,-(,-0./$�601%.)�.'2�,()0%+%(770//$$1�(6�/&$�Z$*01)./;-$3 B"�@-(A02$�=-0//$'�-$.1('1�6(-�0/1�-$A010('1�0'�.�7$$/0'*�%('2;%/$2�,;-1;.'/�/(�/&$�J.*)$+KL$$'$�M,$'�N$$/0'*H%/� H-/0%)$�O� %(77$'%0'*�=0/&�F$%/0('�???BP"�(6�:&.,/$-�?�(6�@.-/�?�(6�Q0A010('�R�(6�#0/)$�B�(6�/&$�E(A$-'7$'/:(2$"3�#&$�1/./$�<(.-2�1&.))�'(/�.2(,/�/&$�7(2$)�%;--0%;);7�0'�7$20.�)0/$-.%+�./�/&$�1.7$�7$$/0'*�0'�=&0%&�0/,-(A02$1�0/1�=-0//$'�-$.1('1�<;/�1&.))�.2(,/�/&$�-$A010('1�./�.�1;<1$X;$'/�7$$/0'*�%('2;%/$2�'(�)./$-�/&.'�S;)+R?8�BPBP3�TUTV[ \"�56�/&$�1/./$�<(.-2�-$I$%/1�/&$�7(2$)�%;--0%;);7�0'�7$20.�)0/$-.%+8�/&$�1/./$�<(.-2�1&.))�/-.'170/�/(�/&$F;,$-0'/$'2$'/8�/&$�E(A$-'(-8�.'2�/&$�.,,-(,-0./$�,()0%+�.'2�601%.)�%(770//$$1�(6�/&$�Z$*01)./;-$�.�1,$%060%=-0//$'�$D,).'./0('�(6�/&$�-$.1('1�6(-�/&$�-$I$%/0('�(6�/&$�7(2$)�%;--0%;);7�0'�7$20.�)0/$-.%+3 )"�]())(=0'*�/&$�.2(,/0('�(6�/&$�7(2$)�%;--0%;);7�0'�7$20.�)0/$-.%+8�/&$�F;,$-0'/$'2$'/�1&.))�,(1/�/&$�%;--0%;);7('�0/1�5'/$-'$/�̂ $<�10/$�6(-�A();'/.-+�;1$�<+�$2;%./(-13 7"�M'�(-�<$6(-$�S;)+�?8�BP?O8�/&$�2$,.-/7$'/�1&.))�7.\$�.A.0).<)$�/(�1%&(()�201/-0%/1�('�0/1�5'/$-'$/�̂ $<�10/$�.)01/�(6�-$1(;-%$1�.'2�0'1/-;%/0('.)�7./$-0.)1�('�7$20.�)0/$-.%+8�0'%);20'*�7$20.�)0/$-.%+�,-(6$110('.)�2$A$)(,7$'/,-(*-.71�6(-�/$.%&$-13 '"�]())(=0'*�/&$�.2(,/0('�(6�/&$�7(2$)�%;--0%;);7�0'�7$20.�)0/$-.%+8�/&$�2$,.-/7$'/_1�5'/$-'$/�̂ $<�10/$�1&.))&.A$�.�7$%&.'017�.%%$110<)$�/(�1%&(()�201/-0%/1�.'2�/$.%&$-1�/(�,-(A02$�6$$2<.%\�('�/&$�7(2$)�%;--0%;);7�0'7$20.�)0/$-.%+3 ("�@-0A./$�-$1(;-%$1�7.+�<$�;1$2�.1�6;'20'*�1(;-%$1�/(�1;,,)$7$'/�/&$�2$A$)(,7$'/�(6�.�7(2$)�%;--0%;);7�0'7$20.�)0/$-.%+3



��������� �	

�����������������	
�	�������	�����	�	��
��	�	 ��!	������"�	��
	����#$
%&'()�*&+%, -./0�123456708,�9:;<9;=9:>�9?,99�1@%AB?CD�12E54�5F6/G2H/5IF,�85J5/.4�H5/5K0F675E�.F8�L085.�45/0G.HMNOPQRSTPQRUV�� WXYZ[\]̂ ZX�Y_̀ ZaYXbc]_d�efghiefgj�]_̀ cYX]�a_aaZ\̂�%)k'*)�A+ll kIN�?CD� +F/GI82H08�3M�%0F./IG�m.Hn6IF�o1G5FH5E.4�HI.2/7IG,�%0F./IG�-I88p��m.F2.GM�<9q�=9:>� rs�tuv�vw�txx�yzuv{ws�|RPQ}~|�vw�v�z��x�utv{ws��wxz���z�tv{s��vw����{��{s�v��uv{ws~�� �����������������������������y����S��t��{sv�wx�uzx���tu��ws~����{��{s�v��uv{ws��x{�{vt��u{v{�zs��{��tsx��zx{t��{vz�tu ~�¡{�v{s���t¢���w£{xz��¤w��t�� �vz��w¤���¥�{u��u�ww���tsx��z¦�{�z��v�z�txw�vzx�uw���z�w¤��v�x �¤w����txz��R�vw�RP�{su���{£z��vw�{su��xz�{s�v��uv{ws�{s���zu{¤{zx�t�zt��w¤��v�x ~§�{��¥{���¢w��x��z¦�{�z��ws�w��¥z¤w�z�̈zuz�¥z��R��PQR���v�z�y��z�{svzsxzsv�w¤���¥�{u�©s�v��uv{ws��{s�uws���vtv{ws¢{v��v�z�z¡zu�v{£z�x{�zuvw��w¤�v�z�yvtvz��wt�x�w¤��x�utv{ws��vw�{xzsv{¤ �¥z�v���tuv{uz��tsx��zuw��zsxtv{ws��¤w�{s�v��uv{ws�{s�x{�{vt��u{v{�zs��{���©svz�szv��t¤zv ��tsx��zx{t��{vz�tu �tsx�vw��z�w�v�vw�v�z�t���w��{tvz�¤{�ut��tsx�w�{u �uw��{vvzz��w¤�v�z�ªz�{��tv��z�ws��v�tvz�{z��vw�{���z�zsv�v�z�¥z�v���tuv{uz��tsx��zuw��zsxtv{ws��vtvz¢{xz~�§�z�¥{���¢w��x��z¦�{�z�v�z�y��z�{svzsxzsv�vw�uws£zsz�tsx�uws���v�¢{v��ts�tx£{�w� �uw��{vvzzuws�{�v{s��w¤���zu{¤{zx��z��z�zsvtv{£z��{s�xz£z�w�{s��v�z�¥z�v���tuv{uz��tsx��zuw��zsxtv{ws�~«wvz���t¬w�{v ���r���w��{tv{ws��sw���{�ut���w��{vvzz�� z����ªwut����w��t���sw���®��̄��̄ ����°��®���������°�����°�±����������������°����²�³�́µ¶·̧¹º�»¼�OtV�§�z�ªz�{��tv��z�¤{sx��tsx�xzu�t�z��t���w¤�v�z�¤w��w¢{s��ORV�½zx{t�tsx�vzu�sw�w� ��t£z�¥zuw�z��z�£t�{£z�{s�t���t�zt��w¤�w����{£z�~OPV�©s�w���u�t���ww�������{������v��zt�s��w¢�vw��t¤z� ��zv�{ut�� ���z��ws�{¥� ��tsx�z¤¤zuv{£z� ���z��zx{t�tsxvzu�sw�w� ��z�w��uz�~O¾V�¿{x���t£z�sz£z���tx�t����u��tuuz���vw�v�z�©svz�szv���zx{t��tsx��w¥{�z�vzu�sw�w�{z��tv��w�z�tsx��u�ww��t�v�z �xw�vwxt ~

À�" �	

�Á�Â��"��	�� Ã�
	Â���	��Ä�Å ��Æ
	���	��� Ç�!��È������ É#���Æ���	��	��� É#�Ê�Ë��	��



��������� �	

�����������������	
�	�������	�����	�	��
��	�	 ��!	������"�	��
	����#$%&'�()*++,-�)./�0,.1�.�)2343).,�2+,5�61�578).43/9:�5;0+<523/9:�./7�5/9.93/9�)*3,725/�<34*�4*5�65-4�02.)43)5-.2+8/7�45)*/+,+91�8-5=%>'�?*3,5�;573.�./7�45)*/+,+91�*.@5�925.4�02+;3-5�A+2�,5.2/3/9:�1+8/9�05+0,5�/557�-800+24�./7�578).43+/�4+,5.2/�*+<�4+�;.B5�-+8/7�C879;5/4-�<*5/�/.@39.43/9�4*5�73934.,�<+2,7=%D'�()*++,�.7;3/3-42.4+2-�./7�578).4+2-�.25�/+<�A.)57�<34*�/5<�./7:�.4�43;5-:�+@52<*5,;3/9�)*.,,5/95-:�-8)*.-�4*+-5�25,.457�4+�023@.)1:�73934.,�A++4023/4-:�)165268,,13/9:�./7�-5E43/9=%6'�F4�3-�4*5�3/45/4�+A�4*5�G593-,.4825�4+�02+@375�.�02+)5--�61�<*3)*�0803,-:�0.25/4-:�98.273./-:�45.)*52-:�45.)*52,362.23./-:�+4*52�-)*++,�5;0,+155-:�-)*++,�.7;3/3-42.4+2-:�./7�)+;;8/341�25025-5/4.43@5-�<3,,�5/9.95�3/�./+/9+3/9�73-)8--3+/�+/�-.A5�;573.�./7�45)*/+,+91�8-5:�<34*�4*5�9+.,�+A�5-4.6,3-*3/9�73934.,�)343H5/-*30�./7�;573.,3452.)1�.-�0.24�+A�4*5�-4.45I-�6.-3)�578).43+/.,�9+.,-�./7�5--5/43.,�.).75;3)�,5.2/3/9�25J8325;5/4-=KLMN�ON�(5)43+/�>PQRD=>�3-�.7757�4+�4*5�S78).43+/�T+75:�4+�25.7UVWOXYNVN�%.'�%P'�Z+2�0820+-5-�+A�4*3-�-5)43+/:�[73934.,�)343H5/-*30\�./7�[;573.�,3452.)1\�.25�62+.7�452;-�4*.45/)+;0.--�)+/-8;043+/�./7�02+78)43+/�+A�;573.�./7�73934.,�02+78)4-�./7�.25�75A3/57�.-�A+,,+<-U%]'�[̂3934.,�)343H5/-*30\�;5./-�.�73@52-5�-54�+A�-B3,,-�25,.457�4+�)8225/4�45)*/+,+91�./7�-+)3.,�;573.:�3/),873/9�4*5/+2;-�+A�.002+023.45:�25-0+/-36,5:�./7�*5.,4*1�65*.@3+2=�_.C+2�.25.-�3/),875�-.A541�)+/)52/-�-8)*�.-)165268,,13/9�025@5/43+/=%̀'�[_573.�,3452.)1\�;5./-�4*5�.63,341�4+�.))5--:�./.,1H5:�5@.,8.45:�75@5,+0:�02+78)5:�./7�3/4520254�;573.�./75/)+;0.--5-�4*5�A+8/7.43+/.,�-B3,,-�4*.4�,5.7�4+�73934.,�)343H5/-*30=%Q'�a*5�G593-,.4825�A3/7-�./7�75),.25-�4*.4�73934.,�)343H5/-*30�./7�;573.�,3452.)1�578).43+/�02+@375�73934.,45)*/+,+91�-B3,,-�5--5/43.,�A+2�-8))5--�3/�4*5�QP-4�)5/4821=%6'�%P'�b/�+2�65A+25�̂5)5;652�P:�QRPc:�4*5�(80523/45/75/4:�3/�)+/-8,4.43+/�<34*�4*5�5E5)843@5�7325)4+2�+A�4*5-4.45�6+.27:�-*.,,�375/43A1�65-4�02.)43)5-�./7�25)+;;5/7.43+/-�A+2�3/-428)43+/�3/�73934.,�)343H5/-*30:�F/452/54-.A541:�./7�;573.�,3452.)1�./7�-*.,,�250+24�4+�4*5�.002+023.45�A3-).,�./7�0+,3)1�)+;;34455-�+A�4*5�G593-,.4825�+/-42.45935-�4+�3;0,5;5/4�4*5�65-4�02.)43)5-�./7�25)+;;5/7.43+/-�-4.45<375=%Q'�a*5�65-4�02.)43)5-�./7�25)+;;5/7.43+/-�-*.,,�65�75@5,+057�3/�)+/-8,4.43+/�<34*�4*5�.7@3-+21�)+;;34455-05)3A357�3/�-8673@3-3+/�%)'=%d'�a*5�65-4�02.)43)5-�./7�25)+;;5/7.43+/-�-*.,,�3/),875�3/-428)43+/�4*.4�02+@375-�9837./)5�.6+84�4*+89*4A8,:-.A5:�./7�-42.4593)�8-5-�+A�+/,3/5�./7�+4*52�;573.�25-+82)5-�./7�578).43+/�+/�*+<�4+�.00,1�)2343).,�4*3/B3/9�-B3,,-<*5/�)+/-8;3/9�./7�02+78)3/9�;573.�3/�./1�A+2;=%&'�a*5�25J8325;5/4�A+2�-86;3443/9�.�250+24�3;0+-57�082-8./4�4+�4*3-�-8673@3-3+/�3-�3/+052.43@5�+/�̂5)5;652�P:QRQd:�082-8./4�4+�(5)43+/�PRQdP=>�+A�4*5�e+@52/;5/4�T+75=%)'�a*5�(80523/45/75/4�-*.,,�)+/@5/5�./7�)+/-8,4�<34*�./�.7@3-+21�)+;;34455�<*5/�75@5,+03/9�65-4�02.)43)5-./7�25)+;;5/7.43+/-�A+2�3/-428)43+/�3/�73934.,�)343H5/-*30:�F/452/54�-.A541:�./7�;573.�,3452.)1=�a*5�.7@3-+21)+;;34455�-*.,,�65�)+;023-57�+A�.�;.C+2341�+A�)5243A3).457�45.)*52�,362.23./-�./7�)8225/4�)5243A3).457�),.--2++;45.)*52-�<34*�5E05235/)5�45.)*3/9�;573.�,3452.)1�./7�-*.,,�3/),875�25025-5/4.43@5-�A2+;�.,,�+A�4*5�A+,,+<3/9U%P'�T.,3A+2/3.�T+8/41�(80523/45/75/4-�S78).43+/.,�(52@3)5-�]--+)3.43+/=%Q'�T.,3A+2/3.�()*++,�̀+.27-�]--+)3.43+/=%d'�SE0524-�3/�73934.,�)343H5/-*30:�F/452/54�-.A541:�./7�;573.�,3452.)1=%&'�b4*52�-4.B5*+,752-:�3/),873/9�0803,-:�)5243A3).457�45.)*52�,362.23./-:�0.25/4�+29./3H.43+/-:�73@52-5�)8225/4),.--2++;�45.)*52-:�./7�-)*++,�.7;3/3-42.4+2-=%7'�a*5�25)+;;5/7.43+/-�+A�4*5�.7@3-+21�)+;;34455�;.1�3/),875:�684�.25�/+4�,3;3457�4+:�4*5�A+,,+<3/9U%P'�f5@3-3+/-�4+�4*5�-4.45�,5.2/3/9�-4./7.27-�./7�4*5�-4.45�578).43+/.,�45)*/+,+91�0,./=%Q'�_+75,�0+,3)35-�./7�02+)57825-�+/�73934.,�)343H5/-*30:�F/452/54�-.A541:�./7�;573.�,3452.)1�75@5,+057�61�4*5()*++,�(80523/45/75/4-�]--+)3.43+/=



��������� �	

�����������������	
�	�������	�����	�	��
��	�	 ��!	������"�	��
	����#$%&'�()*++,�-./01.)0�21+)3//3/�43)3//516�0+�-373,+2�)8/0+9.:3-�/)*++,�-./01.)0�2+,.).3/�54-�21+)3-813/�+43,3)01+4.)�13/+81)3/�54-�;4031430�/5<306�0*50�)54�=3�8/3-�>.0*.4�5�/)*++,�-./01.)0�03)*4+,+?6�2,54@%A'�B3/0�215)0.)3/C�13/+81)3/C�54-�9+-3,/�<+1�.4/018)0.+4�.4�-.?.05,�).0.:34/*.2C�;4031430�/5<306C�54-�93-.5�,.0315)6@%D'�B3/0�215)0.)3/C�13/+81)3/C�54-�9+-3,/�<+1�.4/018)0.+4�0*50�513�)+92,.540�>.0*�0*3�<3-315,�E4.731/5,�(317.)3�FG1503�21+?159�5-9.4./0313-�=6�0*3�()*++,/�54-�H.=151.3/�I.7./.+4�+<�0*3�E4.731/5,�(317.)3�J-9.4./0150.73K+92546�54-�<3-315,�954-503/�3/05=,./*3-�.4�0*3�<3-315,�K*.,-134L/�;4031430�M1+03)0.+4�J)0�%M8=,.)�H5>�NOPGDDA'@%P'�(01503?.3/�0*50�>.,,�/822+10�/)*++,�-./01.)0/�.4�,+)5,�.92,3934050.+4�+<�0*3�=3/0�215)0.)3/�54-13)+9934-50.+4/�-373,+23-�=6�0*3�-325109340C�.4),8-.4?�/01503?.3/�<+1�-3,.731.4?�21+<3//.+45,�-373,+29340�0+3-8)50+1/�54-�/)*++,�5-9.4./0150+1/@




